Mayor

CITY COUNCIL MEETING Amdda Mdrql_Jez Simula

City Hall—Council Chambers, 3989 Central Ave NE EZZZ,CE','Z':::;’:;;
Monday, January 12, 2026 Rachel James

6:00 PM Justice Spriggs

' Laurel Deneen

City Manager

AMENDED AGENDA Aaron Chirpich

AGENDA ITEM A AND 22 AMENDED ON 1/12/26.
CHANGES REFLECTED IN RED AND UPDATED DOCUMENTS
ADDED TO PACKET.

ATTENDANCE INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC

Members of the public who wish to attend may do so in-person, or by using Microsoft Teams Meeting
at ID 280 136 504 322 9, Passcode Sfép5VF2. Additionally, members of the public may view the
meeting live at columbiaheightsmn.gov/watch. For questions, please contact Administration at 763-
706-3610.

Auxiliary aids or other accommodations for individuals with disabilities are available upon request when
the request is made at least 72 hours in advance. Please contact Administration at 763-706-3610 to
make arrangements.

WELCOME/CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL

MISSION STATEMENT

Columbia Heights is a vibrant, healthy and connected City. We are here to actively support the
community, deliver equitable services, build and strengthen connections, improve upon our past, and
uphold our successes. We strive to be better and ensure Columbia Heights is a great place for everyone,
today and in the future.

Columbia Heights City Council and Staff Norms.
While we are accountable to each other for these norms, the Mayor and City Manager will
help us adhere to them with respectful reminders and reinforcement as needed.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
"I pledge allegiance to the flag of the United States of America, and to the Republic for which it stands,
one Nation under God, indivisible, with liberty and justice for all."

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
(The Council, upon majority vote of its members, may make additions and deletions to the agenda.
These may be items submitted after the agenda preparation deadline.)

PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS, RECOGNITION, ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUESTS

A.  Martin Luther King Jr. Day of Service Proclamation.
Accepting Proclamation: Rose McGee, President & Founder, Board Director of Sweet Potato
Comfort Pie.



City of Columbia Heights AGENDA January 12, 2026
City Council Meeting Page 2

CITY COUNCIL AND ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS
Report of the City Council
Report of the City Manager
City Manager Response to December 8, 2025, Community Forum Concerns.

COMMUNITY FORUM
The Community Forum is an opportunity to address the City Council about items not scheduled for a
public hearing.

All speakers must provide their name and connection to Columbia Heights. In-person speakers
should complete a form for the City Clerk and introduce themselves at the podium. Virtual
speakers should send their information to the moderator via chat and turn on their camera
when called.

Comments are limited to five minutes. Disrespectful language is not allowed. The Council may ask
questions or refer items for follow-up but typically does not take action during the forum.

CONSENT AGENDA

These items are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted as part of the Consent
Agenda by one motion. Items removed from consent agenda approval will be taken up as the next
order of business. (The City Council will make motion to approve the Consent Agenda following the
statement of all items.)

1. Approve December 8, 2025 City Council Meeting Minutes.
Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager
MOTION: Move to approve the December 8, 2025, City Council meeting minutes.

™

Accept December 3, 2025, Library Board Minutes.
Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager
MOTION: Move to accept the December 3, 2025, Library Board meeting minutes.

|

Accept October 6, 2025 Regular EDA Meeting Minutes.
Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager
MOTION: Move to accept the October 6, 2025, EDA meeting minutes.

|+

Accept November 10, 2025 Special EDA Meeting Minutes.
Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager
MOTION: Move to accept the November 10, 2025, EDA meeting minutes.

|

Accept December 1, 2025 Regular EDA Meeting Minutes.
Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager
MOTION: Move to accept the December 1, 2025, EDA meeting minutes.



City of Columbia Heights AGENDA January 12, 2026
City Council Meeting Page 3

6.

N

|

|s©

Approval of Resolution 2025-01, Designating Official Depositories for the City of
Columbia Heights.

Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager

MOTION: Move to waive the reading of Resolution 2026-01, there being ample copies
available to the public.

MOTION: Motion to adopt Resolution 2026-01, designating the official depositories for the
City of Columbia Heights.

Approval of Resolution 2025-02, Accepting Certain Donations Received by the City of
Columbia Heights.

Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager

MOTION: Move to waive the reading of Resolution 2026-02, there being ample copies
available to the public.

MOTION: Motion to adopt Resolution 2026-02, accepting donations received by the City of
Columbia Heights.

Adopt Resolution 2026-03, Designating City Council Liaisons and Council President
Appointments for 2026.

Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager

MOTION: Move to waive the reading of Resolution 2026-03, there being ample copies
available to the public.

MOTION: Motion to adopt Resolution 2026-03, appointing a Council President as well as
Liaisons to City Boards & Commissions and External Boards.

Adopt Resolution 2026-04, Approving the Council Handbook for 2026.

Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager

MOTION: Move to waive the reading of Resolution 2026-04, there being ample copies
available to the public.

MOTION: Motion to adopt Resolution 2026-04, approving the 2026 City of Columbia
Heights City Council Handbook.

Consideration Resolution 2026-05, for a Rental Density Cap Exemption for the Property
at 4129 7th St NE.

Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager

MOTION: Move to waive the reading of Resolution 2026-005, there being ample copies
available to the public.

MOTION: Move to adopt Resolution 2026-005, a resolution approving the single-family
rental exemption request for the rental application at 4129 7th Street NE, Columbia
Heights, MN 55421.



City of Columbia Heights AGENDA January 12, 2026
City Council Meeting Page 4

11.

Consideration of Resolution 2026-09, Final Payment to the City of Minneapolis for 37th
Avenue and 37th Place Reconstruction Project from Central Avenue to Stinson Boulevard.
Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager

MOTION: Move to waive the reading of Resolution 2026-009, there being ample copies
available to the public.

MOTION: Motion to adopt Resolution 2026-009 accepting the work for the 37th Avenue
and 37th Place Reconstruction project, City Projects 2110 and 2306, authorizing the final
payment of $1,045,229.17 to the City of Minneapolis, and amending the project budget in
the amount of $285,551 in net change orders approved by the City Manager under the
City’s purchasing policy.

Authorize Payment of Eureka Construction Work Order #031, to Correct a 37th Place
Stormwater Improvement in the amount of $38,414.

Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager

MOTION: Move to authorize payment of Eureka Construction Work Order #031, to correct
a 37th Place stormwater improvement in the amount of $38,414.

Renewal of Canvas Health Social Worker Contract.

Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich — City Manager

MOTION: Move to authorize the City Manager and/or Police Chief to enter into an updated
agreement with Canvas Health to provide two full-time mental health professionals to co-
respond with police officers to individual in crisis calls for a cost of $137,000 annually.

Authorization to Purchase and Outfit Police Vehicle

Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich — City Manager

MOTION: Move to authorize the Police Chief to purchase one 2026 Ford Utility Police
Vehicle from the MN CPV vendor for $48,100, and to expend up to $34,900 for the
outfitting and setting up of this vehicle for patrol use for a total cost of $83,000.

Approval of Public Safety Locker Replacement

Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich — City Manager

MOTION: Move to authorize the Deputy Police Chief to purchase Space Saver lockers and
installation from Mid-America Business systems in the amount of $161,855.24, and to
contract for removal and electrical work as outlined above for a total cost of $171,952.

Approve 2026 Public Works Blanket Purchase Orders for Deicing Salt, Fuel, and
Bituminous Asphalt.

Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager

MOTION: Move to authorize the issuance of blanket purchase orders for calendar year
2026 for de-icing salt, fuel, bituminous asphalt, and refuse carts, in amounts consistent
with the adopted 2026 Public Works budget.



City of Columbia Heights AGENDA January 12, 2026
City Council Meeting Page 5

17.

Approve Public Works 2026—-2029 Three-Year Contract for Roll-Off Material Disposal
Services.

Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich City Manager

MOTION: Move to approve the award of the Public Works 2026—2029 three-year roll-off
material disposal contract to Walters Recycling and Refuse.

Designation of Legal Newspaper for 2026.

Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager

MOTION: Move to designate Life as the City of Columbia Heights official legal newspaper
for 2026.

License Agenda.

Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager

MOTION: Move to approve the items listed on the business license agenda for January 12,
2026, as presented.

Rental Occupancy Licenses for Approval.

Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager

MOTION: Move to approve the items listed for rental housing license applications for
January 12, 2026, in that they have met the requirements of the Property Maintenance
Code.

Review of Bills.

Presenting Item: City Manager Aaron Chirpich

MOTION: Move that in accordance with Minnesota Statute 412.271, subd. 8 the City
Council has reviewed the enclosed list to claims paid by check and by electronic funds
transfer in the amount of $2,646,775.78.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

This is the public’s opportunity to speak regarding this matter. Speakers that are in-person are asked to
complete a Speaker Form and submit it to the City Clerk. Speakers attending virtually should send a
request to speak with this information to the moderator using the chat function and wait to be called
on to speak. When speaking, virtual attendees should turn their camera on. Speakers should limit their
comments to five (5) minutes. Any comments made after the public hearing is closed will not be
considered by the City Council and will not be included as part of the formal record for this matter as
the item will have been voted on and the item formally closed by the Council.

No Public Hearings.



City of Columbia Heights AGENDA January 12, 2026
City Council Meeting Page 6

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
Ordinances and Resolutions

22. Consideration of Resolution 2026-007, Sale of Bond Series 2026A.
Presenting Item: Mitchell Forney Community Development Director
MOTION: Move to waive the reading of Resolution 2026-007, there being ample copies
available to the public.
MOTION: Motion to adopt Resolution 2026-007, a resolution awarding the sale of taxable
general obligation tax increment refunding bonds, series 2026a, in the original aggregate
principal amount of $7,490,000; fixing their form and specifications; directing their
execution and delivery; providing for their payment; authorizing the execution of
documents in connection therewith; and providing for the payment of bonds refunded
thereby.

23. Consideration of Resolution 2026-08, Approving the Development Assistance Agreement
for 4300 Central Ave Ne.
Presenting Item: Mitchell Forney, Community Development Director
MOTION: Move to waive the reading of Resolution 2026-008, there being ample copies
available to the public.
MOTION: Motion to adopt Resolution 2026-008, a resolution approving a development
assistance agreement with the Columbia Heights Economic Development Authority and
Alatus Columbia Heights Il LLC.

Bid Considerations
No Bid Considerations.

New Business and Reports
No New Business or Reports.

ADJOURNMENT

Auxiliary aids or other accommodations for individuals with disabilities are available upon request when the request is
made at least 72 hours in advance. Please contact Administration at 763-706-3610 to make arrangements.



Columbia Heights City Council and Staff Norms

While we are accountable to each other for these norms, the Mayor and City Manager will help
us adhere to them with respectful reminders and reinforcement as needed.

Behavioral Norms

We will assume others best intentions.

We will exercise humility.

We will praise publicly and criticize privately.

We will focus on the policy and not personalities.

We will do our best to de-escalate contentious interactions.

We will provide reasonable notice to the Mayor and City Manager of any changes or additions
we wish to make at a Council meeting so that the Mayor is prepared to manage the meeting.
7. We will show respect for one another by:

a. Paying attention to others when they are speaking.

b. Not interrupting others.

c. Listening to understand others, not simply to respond to them.

d. Honoring each other in public and protecting one another in their absence.

e. Not bullying others.

ok wnNR

Operational Norms

1. Council members and staff will respect the Mayor’s role to chair our meetings by:
a. Waiting to be called on before speaking so that others can consider our contributions.
b. The Mayor and City Manager will bring closure to policy discussions, public comment, and

other similar “final word” situations.

2. Once a decision has been made by the Council, we will support the implementation of that
decision even if we did not support the decision itself.

3. If Council has a request of staff, they will direct their request to the City Manager and the
Division Director for coordination with staff unless the City Manager decides otherwise.

4. If Council has a question about a staff member, they will raise that with the City Manager
privately before raising it publicly.

5. When Council is considering a topic, it is incumbent upon Council members to ask sufficient
guestions to ensure they are making informed decisions.

6. Council and staff will address each other by their titles when engaging each other in any official
capacity and will use first names in informal settings.



COLUMBIA (@) HEIGHTS
PROCLAMATION

Recognizing January 19, 2026, as Martin Luther King Jr. Day

The City of Columbia Heights honors the life and legacy of Dr. Martin Luther King Jr., whose
vision of justice, dignity, and the “Beloved Community” continues to guide communities striving
toward equity, compassion, and mutual respect. Dr. King reminded us that lasting change is built
through nonviolence, service, courage, and love for humanity.

Martin Luther King Jr. Day is both a time of remembrance and a call to action —an opportunity to
lift up leaders who embody these values through service to others and commitment to healing in
the face of injustice.

Rose McGee, founder of the Sweet Potato Comfort Pie Organization, lives out Dr. King’s vision
through her powerful practice of compassion and connection. In 2014, following the killing of
Michael Brown in Ferguson, Missouri, Ms. McGee loaded her car with sweet potato comfort pies
and traveled to the site of the tragedy, offering comfort grounded in culture, presence, and care.

Through that experience, Ms. McGee discovered that the pies were far more than a gesture of
kindness — they became a catalyst for healing, dialogue, and understanding. She has since forged a
practice she calls “baketivism,” using food as a bridge to foster racial healing, courageous
conversations, and community connection.

Today, the Sweet Potato Comfort Pie Organization includes a wide range of programs dedicated to
nurturing empathy, addressing racial trauma, and growing the Beloved Community that Dr. King
envisioned —one rooted in justice, dignity, and shared humanity.

Now, therefore, |, Amada Marquez Simula, Mayor of Columbia Heights, do hereby proclaim this
day as a recognition of Martin Luther King Jr. Day in the City of Columbia Heights and honor
Rose McGee for her leadership, compassion, and steadfast commitment to building Beloved
Community through service, healing, and love.

In Columbia Heights, we celebrate culture, community, and connection. We honor the diversity of
our residents and the traditions they bring. Let this proclamation reflect our ongoing commitment
to belonging, equity, and shared humanity in our City.

Amada Marquez Simula, Mayor
January 12, 2026




Mayor

CITY COUNCIL MEETING Amdda Mdrql_Jez Simula

City Hall—Council Chambers, 3989 Central Ave NE E‘;ZZ;’,’Z’:;Z;:;;
Monday, December 08, 2025 Rachel James

6:00 PM Justice Spriggs

’ Laurel Deneen

City Manager

M I N UTES Aaron Chirpich

The following are the minutes for the Meeting of the City Council held at 6:00 pm on Monday,
December 08, 2025, in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, 3989 Central Avenue NE, Columbia
Heights, Minnesota

WELCOME/CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
Mayor Marquez Simula called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.

Present: Mayor Mdarquez Simula; Councilmember Buesgens; Councilmember Spriggs; Councilmember
James

Absent: Councilmember Deneen

Also Present: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager; Mitchell Forney, Community Development Director; Sara
lon, City Clerk; Joe Kloiber, Finance Director; Travis Lutz, Assistant City Attorney; Adam Hardy,
Landlord/property owner; Patrick McVary, City resident; Stacy McVary, City resident; Eric Paulson, City
resident; Bashir Siyad, City resident; Mark Veronikas, City resident

MISSION STATEMENT

Columbia Heights is a vibrant, healthy, and connected City. We are here to actively support the
community, deliver equitable services, build and strengthen connections, improve upon our past, and
uphold our successes. We strive to be better and ensure Columbia Heights is a great place for everyone,
today and in the future.

A. Columbia Heights City Council and Staff Norms.
While we are accountable to each other for these norms, the Mayor and City Manager will
help us adhere to them with respectful reminders and reinforcement as needed.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
"I pledge allegiance to the flag of the United States of America, and to the Republic for which it stands,
one Nation under God, indivisible, with liberty and justice for all."

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Motion by Councilmember Buesgens, seconded by Councilmember James, to approve the Agenda as
presented. All Ayes, Motion Carried 4-0.

PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS, RECOGNITION, ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUESTS

A. Universal Declaration of Human Rights Proclamation.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 08, 2025
City Council Meeting Page 2

Mayor Marquez Simula proclaimed December 10, 2025, as Universal Declaration of Human
Rights Day and read the City’s proclamation. She explained that there are 30 Universal
Declarations of Human Rights. The Council read the declarations.

CITY COUNCIL AND ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS
Report of the City Council

Councilmember James shared that many community members have had a scary week due to threats of
harassment and difficulties with the Federal Law Enforcement. She noted that she attended the EDA
meeting, the Council work session, the Columbia Heights and Fridley Business Council meeting, a
meeting with leaders in the community about community gardens, the high school musical, the League
of Women Voters Holiday Social, and an event with Mayor Mdarquez Simula and the mayor of Mounds
View.

Councilmember Buesgens announced that HeightsNext would be hosting the Buy Nothing event on
December 14" from 4:00-7:00 pm at Murzyn Hall. The event will have holiday-related items. She
stated she attended the Parks and Recreation Commission meeting and the high school’s musical.

Councilmember Spriggs stated he attended the EDA meeting, the Council work session, and the
qguarterly business council meeting.

Mayor Marquez Simula shared that she attended the Regional Council of Mayors meeting, the League
of Women Voters luncheon, and the listening session with the mayor of Mounds View and families
from Annunciation School. She explained that the stories from the families were heartbreaking, and
the Council is talking about ways to support legislators in reducing large capacity weapons. She noted
that the City hosted the North Metro Business meeting, the Library Board meeting, the EDA meeting,
and the Council work session meeting.

Mayor Marquez Simula read a statement regarding recent ICE activity. She highlighted that immigrants
have continued to strengthen the City. She noted that she stands with every immigrant family.
Increased ICE activity, including reports of racial profiling and actions taken without clear warrants, has
caused fear among families, students, and businesses. Immigration is a part of the City’s history and
identity. She condemned the deployment of ICE agents to the City and metro area. She urged federal
lawmakers to reverse the approach and to protect the civil liberties of Minnesotans everywhere.

Report of the City Manager

City Manager Chirpich noted that the holiday train is coming to town on Sunday, December 14, at
8:00 pm. The train will stop at Lions Park between 37" Avenue and Stinson Boulevard. The holiday City
tour takes place on Tuesday, December 16%™, from 5:00-6:30 p.m. The event includes a festive fire truck
and special guests who will be touring the City. The route can be found on the City’s website and
Facebook page. After the tour, festivities will continue at Murzyn Hall at 5:30 pm with free cocoa,
cider, cookies, crafts, and more from 6:00-8:00 pm. A special guest will be available for holiday photos.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 08, 2025
City Council Meeting Page 3

City Manager Chirpich stated that the community is invited to attend an open house regarding the
future of Sullivan Lake Park on January 7, from 6:00-7:00 pm at City Hall. There will also be an online
survey for the community to provide feedback on the park concepts that are being moved forward. He
reminded the community about winter parking regulations. Crews will be removing snow during the
day and encourage people to move their vehicles until the street has been cleared curb to curb.

Mayor Marquez Simula mentioned that the Council discussed during a work session the possibility of
having a winter parking listening session. She added that they would let the community know when
that will happen.

2. City Manager Response to November 24, 2025, Community Forum Concerns.

City Manager Chirpich mentioned that there were two individuals during the last Community Forum
who expressed concerns related to ICE activity in the City. The individuals had a meeting with the
Police Chief following the Council meeting.

City Manager Chirpich noted that there were questions regarding winter parking and parking on Gould
Avenue and Peters Place. One question was regarding what the City’s winter parking regulations were.
Between November 15 and March 15, it is unlawful to park or leave unattended automobiles, motor
vehicles, recreational vehicles, or trailers on any public road or parkway within the City between 2:00-
6:00 am unless a permit has been issued for that vehicle. The rules also apply for March 16t through
May 1t during snow events producing 2 or more inches of snow.

City Manager Chirpich explained that there was a question regarding where winter parking permits
could be purchased. Individuals can apply for winter parking permits on the City’s website.

City Manager Chirpich stated there was a question regarding how the City enforces winter parking
restrictions. Generally, on a regular basis, the City’s Police Department patrols City streets to identify
infractions, issue tickets, and authorize towing of vehicles that are violating the winter parking
restrictions. There was a question regarding why the City is not issuing a ticket for each vehicle that
violates the rules every night. The City uses a grid system to ensure that each neighborhood is
patrolled on a regular basis in a fair and equitable manner. The City does not have a dedicated parking
enforcement team and does not have sufficient staff to patrol every street for every parking violation
each night. It is common for the plowing crew to coordinate with the police in areas of greater concern
that need immediate attention.

City Manager Chirpich noted that there was a question regarding how the parking conditions on Gould
Avenue and Peters Place were different this year from previous years. The City implemented year-
round parking regulations on Peters Place and Gould Avenue in 2025. The regulations include several
no-parking zones and ensure that driveways and trash cans are not blocked by parked vehicles.

City Manager Chirpich mentioned that there was a question regarding what residents could do to help
make sure plows can clear the streets. Residents are welcome to call the non-emergency police
dispatch line to report a snow or winter parking-related infraction. The phone number is 763-427-
1212. He added that there was a question on what residents can do if they notice a vehicle without



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 08, 2025
City Council Meeting Page 4

ADA or handicap accessibility plates or hang tags that is parked in those designated spaces. He
encouraged residents to call the non-emergency number.

City Manager Chirpich stated there was a question about whether the police try to contact vehicle
owners before issuing or towing vehicles. It is past practice for the police to get a hold of vehicle
owners before towing as an effort to educate residents on the Ordinance. The procedural manual has
been updated in the snow emergency response guidelines to remove that.

City Manager Chirpich explained that there was a question about using the library parking lot as public
parking. The library parking lot is reserved for library patrons and City activities and is not available for
public parking. The City has two free public parking lots that are near the area. He added that there
was a question on whether the City anticipated any updates to the parking regulations in the City Code.
Staff have noted several parking standards and regulations in City Code that could benefit from a
review, but there is no timeline for the process.

City Manager Chirpich stated that there were concerns about the fan noise at City Hall. The City
received updated plans for November 19t regarding the progress of the project. The redesigned plan
would include changes to the ductwork with the fans. The goal is to complete the project before the
cooling system is needed.

Mayor Marquez Simula encouraged residents to call the non-emergency number or call 911 and tell
the dispatcher that it is not an emergency so that there can be data collected on the issue.

COMMUNITY FORUM

Mark Veronikas, City resident, expressed concern regarding plows not being able to plow Peters Place
and Gould Avenue due to cars parked on the street. Between the two streets, there were 15 cars
snowed in. He added that there was a semi-truck that was blocking half of the alleyway. He called the
non-emergency number, and the police officer spent 45 minutes trying to contact the semi-truck
driver. After the semi-truck driver moved the vehicle, the police officer drove down the street and did
not issue a ticket for the 15 vehicles that were parked on the street. He suggested that the library
charge people to park overnight until the library opens. That way, it would provide funds for the library
that the City does not need to pay for, and could lower taxes. He added that the semi-truck blocked his
alleyway for a second time.

Bashir Siyad, City resident, stated that there is parking on only one side of the street on Monroe Street.
He wondered why parking was only allowed on one side of the street.

CONSENT AGENDA

Council member James pointed out item 10 and asked if the two options for where the lift station
would go were examples of where they could go. City Manager Chirpich agreed that it was an example
of where they could go. He added that he expects that it would be moved further south to be closer to
the parking access for ease of maintenance.

Mayor Marquez Simula pointed out item 11 regarding the license agenda. She expressed her
understanding that the paperwork can take some time to get in. She thanked the staff for their work.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 08, 2025
City Council Meeting Page 5

Motion by Councilmember Spriggs, seconded by Councilmember James, to approve the Consent Agenda
as presented. All Ayes, Motion Carried 4-0.

1.

Approve November 24, 2025, City Council Meeting Minutes.
MOTION: Move to approve the November 24, 2025, City Council meeting minutes.

Approve December 1, 2025, City Council Work Session Meeting Minutes.
MOTION: Move to approve the December 1, 2025, City Council Work Session meeting
minutes.

Accept January, April, and July 2025 Charter Commission meeting minutes.
MOTION: Move to accept the January, April, and July 2025 Charter Commission meeting
minutes.

Accept August 27, 2025, Park & Recreation Commission Minutes.
MOTION: Move to accept the August 27, 2025, Park & Recreation Commission minutes.

Accept November 5, 2025, Library Board Minutes.
MOTION: Move to accept the November 5, 2025, Library Board meeting minutes.

Adopt Resolution 2025-90, Establishing the City of Columbia Heights Fee Schedule for
2026.

MOTION: Move to waive the reading of Resolution 2025-90, there being ample copies
available to the public.

MOTION: Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-90, approving the 2026 City-Wide Fee
Schedule.

Adopt Resolution 2025-91, Establishing Precinct Polling Locations.

MOTION: Move to waive the reading of Resolution 2025-91, there being ample copies
available to the public.

MOTION: Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-91, establishing precinct polling locations.

Adopt Resolution 2025-92, Approving Legal Services Contract for 2026.

MOTION: Move to waive the reading of Resolution 2025-92, there being ample copies
available to the public.

MOTION: Motion to adopt Resolution 2025-92, authorizing the City Manager to enter a
contract with Barna, Guzy, and Steffen (BGS) for Legal Services for 2026.

Adopt Resolution 2025-93, Setting the Sale of Bond Series 2026A.

MOTION: Move to waive the reading of Resolution 2025-93, there being ample copies
available to the public.

MOTION: Move to adopt Resolution 2025-93, being a resolution providing for the issuance
and sale of taxable general obligation tax increment refunding bonds, series 2026A, in the
proposed aggregate principal amount of $7,635,000.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 08, 2025
City Council Meeting Page 6

10.

11.

12.

13.

Approval of Contract for Professional Services for Lift Station and Water Main
Improvements at Sullivan Lake Park.

MOTION: Move to award the Sullivan Lake Park Lift Station and Water Main Improvements,
City Project No. 2608, to the consulting firm of ISG Inc., based upon their qualified,
responsible proposal for a cost not to exceed $130,500.

License Agenda.
MOTION: Move to approve the items listed on the business license agenda for December 8,
2025, as presented.

Rental Occupancy Licenses for Approval.

MOTION: Move to approve the items listed for rental housing license applications for
December 8, 2025, in that they have met the requirements of the Property Maintenance
Code.

Review of Bills.

MOTION: Move that in accordance with Minnesota Statute 412.271, subd. 8 the City
Council has reviewed the enclosed list to claims paid by check and by electronic funds
transfer in the amount of $1,615,028.24.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

14.

Resolution 2025-86, Renewal of SJB Enterprise’s Currency Exchange License.
Item Presented by Community Development Director Mitch Forney.

Community Development Director Forney stated on October 31%, City staff received the
attached letter from the Minnesota Department of Commerce regarding the renewal of SJB
Enterprise’s (dba Your Exchange) Currency Exchange License. The letter in the Agenda
Packet outlines the City’s role in reviewing the application and submitting a decision to the
State.

Community Development Director Forney explained that the City does not have a
dedicated currency exchange license, nor do we independently license check-cashing
businesses. However, as outlined in the attached letter and pursuant to Minnesota
Statutes Chapter 53A.04, it is the City's responsibility to review the renewal application and
forward a decision to the State within 60 days. As part of the State's review, the application
includes:

- Background checks conducted by the Minnesota Bureau of Criminal Apprehension,
- Afee schedule for services provided by the business,

- A '$10,000 surety bond valid through December 31, 2026, and

- The $500 renewal fee.

Community Development Director Forney noted that staff have reviewed the application
and supporting materials submitted to the State and have found them to be complete.
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 53A.04 delegates authority to the City for reviewing and



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 08, 2025
City Council Meeting Page 7

15.

providing a decision on currency exchange licenses. The statute states that the City must
provide published notice of its intention to consider the license renewal and solicit
testimony from interested parties, including community members. The statute further
requires the City to make a determination based on whether the licensee meets all
applicable City codes.

Community Development Director Forney stated that in reviewing the renewal application,
staff considered:

- Compliance: No significant compliance issues were identified in the submitted
materials.

- Background Checks: The owners and officers passed the State’s required background
checks.

- Community Impact: In consultation with the Police Department, the business has not
been associated with a high call volume or significant community disturbances.

Mayor Marquez Simula opened the Public Hearing.

Motion by Councilmember James, seconded by Councilmember Buesgens, to close the
public hearing and waive the reading of Resolution 2025-86, there being ample copies
available to the public. All Ayes, Motion Carried 4-0.

Motion by Councilmember James, seconded by Councilmember Spriggs, to adopt Resolution
2025-86, being a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Columbia approving the license
renewal of SIB Enterprises Currency Exchange License. All Ayes, Motion Carried 4-0.

Resolution 2025-89, Adopting a Budget for the Year 2026, Setting the City Levy,
Approving the HRA Levy, and Approving a Tax Rate Increase.
Item Presented by Finance Director Joe Kloiber.

Finance Director Kloiber stated as required under the City Charter, the City Manager
provided the City Council with a proposed 2026 budget in August 2025. That document,
available on the City’s website, explains the proposed 2026 budget with 114 pages of
summary and detailed information, including comparisons to the current year and two
prior years. This information was then reviewed at three Council work sessions
(September, October, November)

Finance Director Kloiber noted that preliminary approval by the City Council of the
proposed 2026 budget and tax levy was made by Resolution 2025-68. Based on that
preliminary approval, Anoka County mailed in November a notice to each property owner
listing their property’s share of the proposed 2026 City property tax levy. Those County
notices also report the proposed 2026 property taxes for all other applicable jurisdictions
(county, school district, HRA, and other special taxing districts).

Finance Director Kloiber explained that the proposed 2026 gross tax levy is a 9.2% increase
in the amount received by the city. The annual portion of the City tax levy subsidized by the



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 08, 2025
City Council Meeting Page 8

Metro Area Fiscal Disparities program will increase by 13% for 2026, under the State
formula for that program. These two changes combine to yield an 8.2% average increase to
local property owners for the portion of the City levy. Under state statute, the City Council
cannot adopt a final 2026 tax levy greater than the amount reported by Anoka County in
the notices sent to each property owner in November.

Finance Director Kloiber stated that through the budget review process, the City Council
identified two functional areas to increase service levels, potentially beyond those included
in the 2026 budget proposed by the City Manager. These are additional remediation of
wear and tear at the Murzyn Hall recreation center and staffing increases at the City
Library. Staff and the City Council then reached a consensus that staff will initially develop
work plans to address these matters, and then, if additional resources are required to
implement those plans in 2026, staff will request the City Council to amend the 2026
budget as needed at that time. More specifically, in regard to these two functional areas:

e The one-time nature of the expected updates to Murzyn Hall will be funded by
appropriating additional fund balance for use from Government Buildings Fund 411,
once the scope of the project is firm.

e In the most recent years, the primary staffing challenge for the City Library has been
filling vacancies and retaining staff. Management is reviewing strategies for addressing
this, including restructuring scheduled hours per week, position grades, etc. Additional
ongoing resources may be a part of the solution to these staffing issues, but the dollar
amount, if any, cannot currently be determined.

Finance Director Kloiber stated staff recommends adopting the 2026 budget and final tax
levy as shown in Resolution 2025-89, which are the same amounts as preliminarily
approved by prior Resolution 2025-68.

Mayor Marquez Simula opened the Public Hearing.

Stacy McVary, City resident, noted that Finance Director Kloiber stated that there were
residents outside of the area who subsidize the tax. She asked for more clarity on the
matter. Finance Director Kloiber clarified that it is property owners instead of residents.
The metro area, under State law, has a revenue-sharing agreement where a certain
percentage of the commercial and industrial property tax base is shared among metro
jurisdictions. Some communities had a lot of commercial properties, while neighboring
communities that did not have as much commercial development bore greater needs
because they had more services required.

Ms. McVary asked if the agreement was evaluated each year. Finance Director Kloiber
replied that there is a formula and State law that is updated based on the prior year tax
levy.

Adam Hardy, Landlord/Property owner, asked how often property values are looked at and
considered. Finance Director Kloiber replied annually. Each spring, the City holds a board of
appeals. Each property owner is mailed a statement of proposed value. During the board of



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 08, 2025
City Council Meeting Page 9

appeals, property owners are given an opportunity to question their evaluation. The
County staff who conduct the property evaluations are present in the meeting to answer
guestions. The County staff has a goal to see 20% of the properties. Over the course of five
years, they see all of the homes. During a year when a home is not physically seen, the
County has a pricing model based on recent sales that estimates the value of the property.

Mr. Hardy asked if the new apartment buildings that are going in would be subsidized with
a lower tax value. Finance Director Kloiber replied that most of the development in the City
has some incentive. City Manager Chirpich replied that the new apartment buildings
benefited from tax increment financing. The developer receives a tax break based on
development agreements. It is a way for the City to level the playing field to promote
redevelopment. He explained that the State recently changed the tax rate that affordable
housing projects pay to a significantly lower rate than all other property classifications. The
idea was to incentivize housing development by the State.

Mr. Hardy explained that he invests in properties in the County. The City’s portion of taxes
is twice the amount as Blaine, Coon Rapids, and Anoka, based on the value of the houses.
He asked why his Columbia Heights house is twice the amount in City taxes as his property
in Blaine. He noted that the houses have a similar value. Finance Director Kloiber replied
that the library is the only municipal library in Anoka County, and it takes up part of the
budget. Other communities do not have their City levy funding the library. The County is
levying on other cities for the library. He mentioned that he would follow up with Mr.
Hardy to provide more insight. He explained that it is difficult to compare the value of a
house in different cities. It is more useful to compare the median values between the
communities. He added that there are varying levels of services between communities.

Mr. Hardy summarized that the City is a bedroom community and does not have the
commercial and industrial development that other places have. Therefore, the brunt of the
costs is taken by homeowners instead of companies. Hopefully, the affordable housing
units will offset some of the homeowner costs. He noted that he looked at Edina Realty’s
website, and there are two condos that are not valued properly, and homeowners take the
brunt of it, which is why the taxes are double the amount from other communities. City
Manager Chirpich mentioned that the condos are for sale. He added that the City is already
developed, whereas other communities have room for development, which moves at a
more rapid pace.

Mayor Marquez Simula explained that many residents have wondered if the Medtronic site
could be turned into a park. The property would be taxed based on the use, so if it were
turned into a park, it would be tax-exempt, and the City would not receive the tax money
from it. The City is old, which makes it difficult to put in new development because
developers would be working with old systems underground, or there is no space for
construction to happen. She thanked Mr. Hardy for his questions and mentioned that the
County is present during the assessment hearings and is available to hear if the home is
valued incorrectly.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 08, 2025
City Council Meeting Page 10

Bashir Siyad, City resident, stated he had the same question as Mr. Hardy regarding the tax
valuation. He asked what the taxes were based on and explained that his taxes went up a
lot. He added that property taxes keep coming up each year, and he wanted to gain an
understanding. Finance Director Kloiber replied that if the County does not physically look
at a home to determine the value, the County will rely on recent sales of other similar
properties in the area to determine the property value. Between 2025 and 2026,
residential properties in the City went up 3.5%.

Mr. Siyad asked if the whole metro area was seeing higher property taxes, or if it was just
in Anoka County. Financial Director Kloiber replied that there is a wide range of tax
increases in 2026. It is difficult to compare across communities.

Councilmember Buesgens explained that there are several reasons that the City’s taxes are
higher. The City is an urban center, and the City only has 5% commercial property, which
means the bulk of taxes falls on the residents. The previous Councils made a lot of cuts.
There are a lot of old buildings that can no longer be patched up and need to be replaced.
The housing values in the City have gone up significantly. Staff are coming before the
Council, already making cuts. The City has a skeleton staff, and prices continue to go up
since COVID.

Patrick McVary, City resident, stated what due diligence the City does to ensure that it is
providing the right services for the citizens, or developing services that may be needed.
Mayor Marquez Simula replied that the City has boards and commissions of community
members that volunteer their time to inform the Council and staff of what they are seeing
in the community. She added that the City does community outreach to gather input and
feedback from the community. She explained that she wants to steward the funds in the
City well.

City Manager Chirpich added that the City desires to have constant improvement to ensure
that it is meeting the needs of the community. He explained that he wants staff to be
curious, ask questions, and be more efficient with everyone’s resources. He noted that the
Council, division heads, and staff get together to review the primary goals for the next two
years and assess if they need to make any changes. He read the core strategies, which
include: A community that grows with purpose and equity; high-quality public spaces that
are safe and accessible that are built for everyone; safe, engaged, effective, and forward
thinking; a resilient and prosperous economy; and an inclusive and connected community.

Councilmember Spriggs explained that the tax increases are seen across the nation. He
stated that there is a rise in inflation, and there have been cuts in State and Federal funding
programs and grants. Therefore, the City has to decide to keep the services stable and raise
taxes, or cut services to keep taxes stable.

Finance Director Kloiber noted that in 2026, the City is making a change from using street
assessments to finance street construction. The street construction would be paid for with
a tax levy. The shift comprises about a third of the increase for 2026. A third of the tax
increase is due to the increase in the cost of living and two additional positions at the City.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 08, 2025
City Council Meeting Page 11

Councilmember James acknowledged that the tax increase is a hardship. Half of the budget
is for public safety. There have been years of underinvestment in basic services over the
years. If the City cuts services or delays maintenance, it will cost more in the future.
Everything the City is doing in the budget is are backbone items that have to get done; it
does not include extra items. She noted that there are property tax refunds that are
available. She explained that the City is working for efficiencies, advocating for sustainable
revenue sources at the State and Federal levels.

Eric Paulson, City resident, asked if the budget for 2026 reflected the costs for the new
Public Works building. Mayor Marquez Simula replied that it does not, and the City is
hoping for assistance from the State. City Manager Chirpich noted that there are some
2026 budget expenditures that are related to advancing the project, including the
architectural and engineering plan development and the acquisition of the property
adjacent to which is about $800,000 in the budget.

Mayor Marquez Simula explained that there have been more calls to the Police and Fire
Department than they were meant to handle. It is due to more mental health concerns and
fewer medical areas for people to receive services. The City invested in a full-time social
worker who was paid through grants. When the grant ended, the City decided to continue
paying the social worker since it caused so many calls to the Fire and Police Department to
go down, and it was successful. She added that the City received a grant for a therapy dog
for the Police Department. Staff have been creative in how the City can access grants and
provide services that the City can use. There will be an additional position for code
enforcement. She explained that it is a long process for staff to go to a home to check on
code enforcement. She added that the City does not have the staff to do it, so the new
position will help with staff time. She explained that she wants to do things right and invest
in the resources for the future. She stated that the staff work hard and expressed her pride
in the staff. She noted that City staff are paid in an equitable way because the City wants to
keep the staff that they have. She acknowledged that the tax increases are a financial
hurdle.

Motion by Councilmember Buesgens, seconded by Councilmember Spriggs, to close the
public hearing and waive the reading of Resolution 2025-89, there being ample copies
available to the public. All Ayes, Motion Carried 4-0.

Motion by Councilmember Buesgens, seconded by Councilmember Spriggs, to adopt
Resolution 2025-89, being a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Columbia adopting
a budget for the year 2026, setting the city levy, approving the HRA levy, and approving a
tax rate increase. All Ayes, Motion Carried 4-0.

ADJOURNMENT
Motion by Councilmember James, seconded by Councilmember Spriggs, to adjourn. All Ayes, Motion
Carried 4-0.

Meeting adjourned at 7:53 pm.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 08, 2025
City Council Meeting Page 12

Respectfully Submitted,

Sara lon, City Clerk/Council Secretary



COLUMBIA HEIGHTS PUBLIC LIBRARY Approved
3939 Central Ave NE, Columbia Heights, MN 55421 1/7/2026
BOARD OF TRUSTEES: MEETING MINUTES

Wednesday, December 3, 2025

ATTENDANCE INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC
Members of the public who wished to attend could do so in-person, or via Microsoft Teams by entering Meeting ID 254 921 776 562 0 and passcode
QP35BK9R at the scheduled meeting time. For questions, please contact Administration at 763-706-3610.

The meeting was called to order in the Library Community Room by Melanie Magidow at 5:30pm.

Members present: Melanie Magidow; Theresa Strike; Chris Polley. Members remotely present: Amada Marquez Simula
(City Council Liaison). Members absent: Olga Herrera; Amina Maameri. Others present: Renee Dougherty (Library Director);
Nick Olberding (Board Secretary). Public present: N/A.

1. The Agenda was approved with correspondence from Mary Thies added to the Community Forum.
2. The Minutes from November 5, 2025, Library Board Meeting were moved and approved.
3. Review of 2025 Operating Budget: 91.51% of the year completed and 86.43% of the budget expended.
a. Cent. Garage Repair and Parts (42280) & Garage Labor Burden (44050): Backup power generator
maintenance costs will be attributed to these two budget lines.

Community Forum: Opportunity for public input. One comment e-mailed to the Mayor; no public in attendance.
The CHPL website now has a contact form to submit questions or concerns: https://chplmn.org/board

Mary Thies Correspondence (11/13/25): Mary visited the Library last month for the first time in years and was
disappointed in the atmosphere (consisting of children running/playing, adults talking on their phones and to
each other, teens playing videogames on the public computers, and staff assisting patrons at regular volume).
Based on the description, staff assumed that she must have visited during the period after school lets out (the
busiest time of the day/week) and although staff always tries to maintain a peaceful environment in the Library,
the volume and activity in the building ebbs and flows all the time. Staff do what they can to keep kids from
running outside of the children’s area and ask adults to take loud conversations into a private room, the lobby,
or outside--when there’s a lot of people and activity, there is only so much that can be done. Libraries are not as
quiet as they once were; in addition to a place for study, we’re a third place for people in the community to
work, relax, play, socialize, and merely exist without the expectation of spending money. Although we are sorry
Mary was disappointed in the environment during her visit, there are many times during any given week which
would be quieter and likely more favorable to her. Amada has replied to Mary and it was suggested that Renee
should also reach out to invite Mary back at another time.

Old Business:

4. Approve Revisions to the Collection Development and Management Policy: The Board reviewed the policy
which Renee created with input from last month’s meeting, related policies from Anoka County and local
independent public libraries. The Board approves of the more general and broad approach to the policy which
should be clearer internally and externally. With two Board members missing tonight and the Library’s two
librarians yet to review the changes, it was decided to table approval until next meeting.

New Business:

5. Approve Library Board 2026 Meeting Dates: The dates presented remain on the first Wednesday of each month
at 5:30pm in the Library Community Room. The last few years the July meeting has been preemptively
cancelled, but since two of the three members in attendance have terms ending soon, they did not want to
make the decision for the future Board (the July meeting can be revisited in the future for cancellation if




desired). A MOTION was made to approve the meeting dates as presented; it was seconded and approved.
Approve 2026 Library Holiday/Closed Dates: The Board was presented the Holiday/Closed dates for 2026,
which are the same occasions as last year with updated dates/days of the week. Not on the presented list,
Renee expressed that we should also close early at 5pm on New Year’s Eve in 2026 similarly to all other libraries
in the metro area. The Board discussed the possibility of being closed for Eid Al-Fitr/Eid Al-Adha as well, but it
was noted that there are many various religious holidays that we stay open for and some would argue that
celebrants of the holidays may want to visit the Library on those days and would prefer we remain open; also
mentioned was the fact that we used to be closed on Good Friday but this has been discontinued. The Board
agreed with all the proposed dates; a MOTION was made to approve the proposed closed dates with the
amended early closing on New Year’s Eve (December 31, 2026); it was seconded and approved.

Approve 2026 CHPL Fee Schedule: The Board reviewed the proposed 2026 fee schedule which only had one
change for black+white printing (from 10¢ to 20¢ per printed side); color prints would remain at 50¢. Renee
stated that the change was proposed to match Anoka County Library (also increasing in 2026) and to offset an
added tariff fee our print management provider is charging monthly for supplies. Renee researched other library
systems in the metro, which confirmed that the new price is still competitive with other options: HCL
[B+W:20¢/C:50¢...with limited free printing allowance for cardholders]; RCL [B+W:20¢/C:75¢]; SPPL
[B+W:15¢/C:75¢]; FedEx Office [B+W:26¢/C:71¢]. The Board agreed that it was still a good value; a MOTION was
made to approve the 2026 CHPL Fee Schedule; it was seconded and approved. It will now go to the City Council
for final approval along with other department’s proposed fee schedules.

Director’s Update:

8.

September Board Report: Provided as an FYI.

a. The Board commented on their endorsement of the EL Family Nights we continue to host with the local
schools to orient new families to the Library’s services.

b. The 2026 budget will soon be approved by the City Council; the property tax levies have been set, so the
budget can only be reduced, not increased at this point. The City Council recommended that the Library
and Parks & Recreation receive additional funding (to be assessed early next year) for increased
programming, improvements, and staffing opportunities; more information to come.

c. Chris forwarded contact information about Taho Sportswear, who do great work on the school district’s
Hylander branded merchandise.

Board Books (what we’re reading, watching, playing, listening to, or simply recommend):

a. Amada: The Power of Bridging: How to Build a World Where We All Belong john a. powell

b. Theresa: All the Young Men: A Memoir of Love, AIDS, and Chosen Family in the American South Ruth Coker
Burks; The Fifth Elephant (Discworld series) Terry Pratchett
Chris: Now We Are Six (youth book) A.A. Milne; La Haine (French) Mathieu Kassovitz (streaming on Kanopy)
Melanie: The Italian Garden Charlotte Betts; Before Morning (youth book) Joyce Sidman
Renee: The Women Kristin Hannah
Nick: The Handmaid’s Tale Margaret Atwood; Fahrenheit 451 Ray Bradbury

o oo

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:20pm.

Respectfully submitted,

N

Nick Olberding
Recording Secretary, CHPL Board of Trustees



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
City Hall—Shared Vision Room, 3989 Central Ave NE
Monday, October 06, 2025
4:45 PM

MINUTES

The meeting was called to order at 4:45 pm by President James.

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
Members Present: Connie Buesgens; Laurel Deneen; Lamin Dibba (4:58 pm); Rachel James; Amada
Marquez-Simula (4:46 pm); Justice Spriggs; Marlaine Szurek

Staff Present: Mitchell Forney, Community Development Director; Aaron Chirpich, City Manager; Sarah
LaVoie, Administrative Assistant; Emilie Voight, Community Development Coordinator

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

CONSENT AGENDA
1. Approve the minutes of the regular EDA Meeting of September 02, 2025.

2. Approve financial reports and payment of bills for August 2025 — Resolution No. 2025-25.

Motion by Deneen, seconded by Buesgens, to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. All ayes of
present. MOTION PASSED.
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-25

A RESOLUTION OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF COLUMBIA HEIGHTS, MINNESOTA,
APPROVING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE MONTH OF AUGUST 2025 AND THE PAYMENT OF
THE BILLS FOR THE MONTH OF AUGUST 2025.

WHEREAS, the Columbia Heights Economic Development Authority (the “EDA”) is required by
Minnesota Statutes Section 469.096, Subd. 9, to prepare a detailed financial statement which shows all
receipts and disbursements, their nature, the money on hand, the purposes to which the money on
hand is to be applied, the EDA's credits and assets and its outstanding liabilities; and

WHEREAS, said Statute also requires the EDA to examine the statement and treasurer's vouchers or
bills and if correct, to approve them by resolution and enter the resolution in its records; and

WHEREAS, the financial statements for the month of August 2025 have been reviewed by the EDA
Commission; and

WHEREAS, the EDA has examined the financial statements and finds them to be acceptable as to both
form and accuracy; and

WHEREAS, the EDA Commission has other means to verify the intent of Section 469.096, Subd. 9,
including but not limited to Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, Annual City approved Budgets,



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES October 06, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 2

Audits and similar documentation; and

WHEREAS, financial statements are held by the City’s Finance Department in a method outlined by the
State of Minnesota’s Records Retention Schedule,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Columbia Heights Economic
Development Authority that it has examined the referenced financial statements including the check
history, and they are found to be correct, as to form and content; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the financial statements are acknowledged and received and the check
history as presented in writing is approved for payment out of proper funds; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED this resolution is made as part of the permanent records of the Columbia
Heights Economic Development Authority.

ORDER OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Passed this 6t of October 2025

Offered by: Laurel Deneen

Seconded by:  Connie Buesgens

Roll Call: All ayes of present. MOTION PASSED.
President

Attest:

Secretary

BUSINESS ITEMS

3. Fire Suppression Grant Application (Sister Bud, LLC)
Voight reported that in 2022, the EDA created the Fire Suppression Grant Program to assist local
businesses with the expenses incurred when installing fire suppression systems within commercial
buildings. Many of the commercial properties in Columbia Heights do not have fire suppression
systems. Certain businesses and changes of use require the addition of fire suppression systems to
existing buildings. Earlier this year, the EDA budgeted additional funds for the Fire Suppression
Grant Program and increased the maximum available grant award per applicant from $30,000 to
$50,000.

Voight stated that one of the future tenants of 5011 University Ave has submitted an application
for this grant program. The prospective tenant, Sister Bud, LLC, is a cannabis retailer that is
currently working with the owner of the building to build out a cannabis retail space. Since this
proposed new business occupancy requires a change of use, the new business is required to install
a sprinkler system in the building. Additionally, since the new retail space will be located in a strip



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES October 06, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 3

mall, the entirety of the strip mall must be sprinkled. This requirement is established via Minnesota
State Statute Chapter 1306.0020 MUNICIPAL OPTION Subp. 2. “Existing and new buildings.”

Voight noted that the applicant has provided more than the required two quotes from licensed fire
protection contractors, as well as two quotes from water main contractors. The lowest bids for the
project total $104,225. The quotes have been included in the meeting packet. In the 2025
budgeting process, the EDA allocated $100,000 to the program and increased the amount
accessible per grant award. So far in 2025, there has been one applicant who was awarded a grant
of $30,000. This leaves $70,000 in grant funds available for the remainder of 2025.

Voight mentioned that Staff recommend approval of the application at the maximum
reimbursement allowance of $50,000. As demonstrated by the quotes provided by the applicant,
the price of adding fire suppression systems is cost-prohibitive for small businesses. Installation of
the required fire suppression system in the structure will help modernize the entire building, not
solely the new retail space, and will help ensure that it can be used in a safe manner by current and
future tenants.

Questions/Comments from Members:

Deneen asked if the applicant was required to get permission from each of the tenants for
construction to occur. Voight replied that the applicant is required to get approval from the
property owner before applying. She added that she is unsure if the property owner has
communicated with the other tenants. Even if the grant is not approved, the applicant will be
required to install sprinklers in order to have the business there.

James asked if the business would receive their cannabis license.

Buesgens pointed out that a tenant who was renting space in the building would be paying for the
entire sprinkler system in the building. She mentioned that it would make more sense for the
building owner to be paying for the sprinkler system. Forney replied that staff are not privy to what
the financial agreement is, but ultimately, businesses come to the City to apply for the grant
because they are the ones who are triggering the requirements. It is possible that the property
owner would be paying for most or all of the sprinkler system. Buesgens stated that the property
owner should be the one coming to the City for the grant and paying for the sprinkler system.
Forney replied that often the property owner pays for the sprinkler system, but sometimes the
business applies for the grant.

Buesgens asked how many buildings in the city need updated sprinklers. Forney replied that almost
all of them need this, since most of the existing commercial spaces were built before fire
suppression systems were required.

Szurek asked if the business would be growing marijuana on the property. Forney replied that they
would be. Szurek pointed out that the sprinkler system would be important to have for this portion
of the business.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES October 06, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 4

Motion by Spriggs, seconded by Deneen, to waive the reading of Resolution No. 2025-26, there being
ample copies available to the public. All ayes of present. MOTION PASSED.

Motion by Spriggs, seconded by Deneen, to approve Resolution No. 2025-26, a Resolution of the
Columbia Heights Economic Development Authority, approving the form and substance of the Fire
Suppression Grant Agreement, and approving authority staff and officials to take all actions necessary
to enter the authority into the Fire Suppression Grant Agreement with Sister Bud, LLC. All ayes of
present. MOTION PASSED.

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-26

A RESOLUTION OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF COLUMBIA HEIGHTS, MINNESOTA,
APPROVING THE FORM AND SUBSTANCE OF THE FIRE SUPPRESSION GRANT AGREEMENT, AND
APPROVING AUTHORITY STAFF AND OFFICIALS TO TAKE ALL ACTIONS NECESSARY TO ENTER THE
AUTHORITY INTO THE FIRE SUPPRESSION GRANT AGREEMENT WITH SISTER BUD, LLC.

WHEREAS, the City of Columbia Heights (the “City”) and the Columbia Heights Economic Development
Authority (the “Authority”) have collaborated to create a certain Fire Suppression Grant Program (the
“Program”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to guidelines established for the Program, the Authority is to award and
administer a series of grants to eligible commercial or industrial property owners and/or tenants for
the purposes of revitalizing, rehabilitating, and restoring buildings, and increasing business vitality,
economic performance, and public safety; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has thoroughly reviewed copies of the proposed form of the Grant
Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that, after appropriate examination and due consideration, the
Authority:
1. approves the form and substance of the grant agreement and approves the Authority entering
into the agreement with Sister Bud, LLC.
2. that the City Manager, as the Executive Director of the Authority, is hereby authorized,
empowered and directed for and on behalf of the Authority to enter into the grant agreement.
3. that the City Manager, as the Executive Director of the Authority, is hereby authorized and
directed to execute and take such action as they deem necessary and appropriate to carry out
the purpose of the foregoing resolution.

ORDER OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Passed this 6t of October 2025

Offered by: Justice Spriggs
Seconded by: Laurel Deneen



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES October 06, 2025

EDA Meeting Page 5
Roll Call: All ayes of present. MOTION PASSED.
President
Attest:
Secretary

4. NOAH Program Proposal Review
Voight reported that following EDA discussions in February and June, staff are bringing forward a
proposal for the creation of the Columbia Heights Naturally Occurring Affordable Housing (NOAH)
Loan Program. As explained during the June EDA meeting, staff consulted with the Minnesota
Center for Energy and Environment (CEE) for the program’s development. CEE is a nonprofit
organization that partners with many Minnesota cities on housing grant and loan programs. Given
its years of experience and its ongoing government partnerships across the Twin Cities metro area,
CEE has both the capacity and the expertise necessary to act as a loan originator, loan servicer, and,
as applicable for any projects not subject to City permitting, inspector.

Voight explained that the EDA provided specific and substantial direction to staff for the program’s
design during its June meeting. The Commission’s guidance included details about program form
and function, loan amounts and terms, types of eligible properties, income and rental restrictions,
and types of eligible project activities, amongst other items. Staff subsequently worked closely with
the EDA’s legal counsel and CEE to develop a program that would incorporate the EDA’s guidance
and respond to its intent. The attached draft program documents reflect the EDA’s direction and
have already been reviewed, revised, and approved by the EDA’s legal counsel and CEE. During
tonight’s meeting, it is staff’s goal to gain EDA approval of the substantive details of the NOAH Loan
Program, as laid out in these documents, and to obtain the EDA’s authorization to move forward
with implementation in order to launch the program on January 1, 2026.

Voight mentioned that staff and CEE have discussed program administration and established clear
roles for the proposed partnership. Both the City and CEE will market the NOAH Loan Program.
Both parties will also be involved at different points of each loan and project. To begin, when a
property owner is interested in the program, they will apply directly with CEE and be guided
through the application by one of CEE’s loan officers. The loan officer will answer any applicant
guestions concerning eligibility and will liaise with City staff for approval items such as the
conforming/legal nonconforming use and “in good standing” requirements. Once a loan application
has been approved, CEE will underwrite the loan and complete the closing process. Project work
may begin following the closing. As soon as the project work is complete, CEE will again liaise with
the City to arrange for final inspections as required by the types of activities completed using
project funds. Following final inspections, the loan funds will be disbursed. CEE will invoice the City
monthly for loan disbursements and administrative costs.

Voight stated that for the initial launch, staff propose to fund the NOAH Loan Program through two
sources: EDA Fund 408 for administrative costs and the City’s Local Housing Trust Fund for loans. At
its September meeting, the EDA resolved to include $10,000 in Fund 408’s 2026 budget for NOAH



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES October 06, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 6

Loan Program administrative costs. The City’s Local Housing Trust Fund currently holds the City’s
Local Affordable Housing Aid (LAHA) dollars, which have specific expenditure requirements that are
well-suited for use for NOAH preservation but are not eligible for use for administrative costs.

Voight noted that concerning the funding of the loans themselves, staff recommend using LAHA
funds from 2024-2025 to fund Program Year (PY) 2026. Staff then recommend that in each
subsequent year, the EDA dedicate a portion of — or all of — the City’s annual LAHA funds to support
the loans in the following PY. For example, 2026 LAHA funds would fund PY 2027 loans, then 2027
LAHA funds would fund PY 2028 loans. The current draft program documents establish an initial
contract period through December 31, 2028.

Voight mentioned that at the close of the 2025 calendar year, the City’s Local Housing Trust Fund
will contain approximately $533,126.67. This amount is comprised of the City’s 2024 and 2025
LAHA disbursements. For PY 2026, staff recommend budgeting $350,000.00 from the Trust Fund
toward loans granted through the NOAH Loan Program. This would leave $183,126.67 of 2024-
2025 LAHA funds undedicated, for use in other housing programs or projects. Barring shifts in
legislative priorities, staff expect that the City will continue to receive LAHA funds annually, with an
additional $390,000 (approx.) anticipated to be received in 2026. In the event that the State were
to discontinue distribution of LAHA funds, the EDA would need to consider flexing funds from other
strategies or programs.

Voight stated that by granting approval at tonight’s meeting, the EDA is agreeing to a budget with
CEE; specifically, it is confirming that it will dedicate $360,000 in funds (loan and admin costs) for
the program. Since the City is in the middle of its annual budget process, staff do not recommend
that the EDA amend the proposed 2026 Local Housing Trust Fund (Fund 205) expenditures in order
to reflect the new program. At a later date, staff will bring forth an amendment to Fund 205,
solidifying the decision by the EDA to dedicate $350,000 to the NOAH Loan Program. This is similar
to 2025, in which the EDA established a budget amendment mid-year in order to better align its
expenditures with the goals it defined at the beginning of the year.

Questions/Comments from Members:

Buesgens asked staff to explain the income requirements and why they change during the year.
Voight replied that during the previous EDA meeting, the Commission indicated that they would
like to target the lower end of the area median income allowed by the LAHA funds. The LAHA fund
requirements state that 50% AMI should be prioritized before 80% AMI, but due to the way that
loan applications come in the door, it is difficult to prioritize and also keep applications moving
forward from an administrative perspective.

Buesgens asked how many duplexes are in the City. Voight replied that staff would look into it.
Buesgens asked how successful the program is in other cities. Voight replied that she spoke with
the city of Fridley. They do not have the same program, but they have a similar home improvement
program, and it is popular. Other cities use their LAHA funds in a variety of ways, so it is difficult to
find an exact equivalent. She added that she expects there will be an initial period of time of
evaluating how attractive the program is. She noted that the City will need to give the program



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES October 06, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 7

time for the community to hear about the program and understand the criteria for it before
assessing its effectiveness.

Buesgens asked if applications would be slow in January and February. She pointed out that 80%
AMI would kick in during March and that it may not meet the EDA’s goal to target 50% AMI. Forney
replied that only 50% AMI would be able to apply during January and February each year, not only
the first year. He added that after the first year, staff would be able to evaluate how many
applications there are in January and February and see if the 50% priority time period would need
to be extended.

Dibba wondered how the City could distribute the information about the program to the
community before January. Voight replied that the Community Development Department and the
Communications Department will work closely together in order to get information out to the
public. She added that it was also possible for the EDA to request to extension of the 50% priority
time period to January through March.

James stated she was in favor of extending the time period to March. She added that the language
is not clear when it says eligible and ineligible borrowers. She wondered whether someone with a
green card would be ineligible. She stated that as long as an applicant is a legal resident, whether a
U.S. citizen or not, they should be eligible for the program. Szurek disagreed and stated the
program should be for legal citizens of the United States. James explained that if someone has a
green card, they are paying taxes, which goes into the State LAHA fund, which would make
someone eligible to apply for the same programs as everyone else. Forney replied that it was a
good point and something staff could speak to CEE about. James explained that the language
should be clarified instead of saying “foreign national.”

Buesgens stated she looked up “foreign national,” and it means “someone who is not a citizen of
the country in which they are located or residing. For example, in the United States, a foreign
national is someone who is neither a U.S. citizen nor a lawful permanent resident, of a green card
holder.”

James asked what would happen if someone lost their job in the middle of their rental agreement.
She pointed out that the program eligibility is based on tax returns and asked how long it would
take. Voight replied that all of the rental income verification occurs at the beginning of the
application process. The information is provided by the applicant. If someone lost their
employment for two months, the City would not know because there will not be weekly or monthly
monitoring.

James noted page 69, paragraph 1 of the Agenda Packet, which talks about the eligible use of
funds. She mentioned that kitchen appliance replacement is on the list. She expressed her concern
that it is not a permanent addition to a residence. Voight replied that it is addressed under
ineligible use of funds, but staff could add clarification in the language. James suggested striking
non-permanent appliances.

Buesgens asked if it was possible to send a mailer out to all landlords that fit the requirements to



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES October 06, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 8

let them know about the program. Forney replied that it was possible, and they could also send an
email.

James pointed out page 70 of the Agenda Packet under the budget notes, which mentions the
prioritization visit. She asked if the CEE or the City conducted the visit. Voight replied that CEE
would conduct the visit. James asked if there were translation services provided for the visits.
Voight replied that they have not discussed that with CEE, but would ask them.

Deneen asked if there were guidelines for the way that the landlord has performed in the past.
Voight replied that the program guidelines include a good standing criterion, and information
about conforming uses or legal non-conforming uses. Deneen asked if there were guidelines for
how the funds must be spent across the rental. Buesgens explained that the loan cannot pay for
any improvements for the owner’s unit if they live in an apartment unit or duplex.

Dibba asked if there were any guidelines for an individual who owns multiple rental properties in
the City. He asked how many applications would be allowed. Voight replied that the proposal says
not more than one loan per property/borrower every five years.

Buesgens asked if the program would limit property owners from receiving other funding sources
to fund energy-efficient projects on the property. Forney replied that CEE partners with Home
Energy Squad. When CEE does the visit, they will be able to provide the property owner with
information about rebates and other financing mechanisms.

Spriggs asked if there was a requirement for any specific testing to be done, such as lead or radon
testing. Voight replied that it is not currently included in the program, but staff could speak with
CEE to see if it is possible to include it in the program. The EDA agreed that they would be
interested in staff looking into the possibility.

James asked if the proposed changes for eligible uses, prioritization time period, and eligible
borrowers could be amended in the proposal. Staff agreed.

Motion by Mdrquez-Simula, seconded by Buesgens, to waive the reading of Resolution No. 2025-27 as
amended, there being ample copies available to the public. All ayes of present. MOTION PASSED.

Motion by Mdrquez-Simula, seconded by Spriggs, to adopt Resolution No. 2025-27 as amended, a
Resolution of the Economic Development Authority of Columbia Heights, Minnesota, approving the
creation and implementation of the Columbia Heights Naturally Occurring Affordable Housing (NOAH)
Loan Program. All ayes of present. MOTION PASSED.

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-27
A RESOLUTION OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF COLUMBIA HEIGHTS, MINNESOTA,

APPROVING THE CREATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE NATURALLY OCCURRING AFFORDABLE
HOUSING (NOAH) LOAN PROGRAM.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES October 06, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 9

WHEREAS, the City of Columbia Heights has a zoning code that permits multifamily dwellings in certain
designated districts, resulting in a wide variety of sizes, styles, and configurations in the types of
multifamily residential buildings that have been constructed throughout the city’s history; and

WHEREAS, the timing and pattern of Columbia Heights’ development have resulted in an aging housing
stock, particularly among small- to medium-sized multifamily buildings; and

WHEREAS, many of these aging multifamily properties provide Naturally Occurring Affordable Housing
(NOAH), unsubsidized rental housing that remains affordable due to market conditions rather than
public intervention; and

WHEREAS, NOAH units are critical components of the City’s housing ecosystem, offering affordable
housing options to residents who may not qualify for or have access to income-restricted housing
programs; and

WHEREAS, the preservation and improvement of NOAH properties are essential to maintaining
housing affordability and preventing displacement of low- and moderate-income residents; and

WHEREAS, in 2024, the City of Columbia Heights established a Local Housing Trust Fund supported by
State-allocated Local Affordable Housing Aid (LAHA) funds, and designated the Economic Development
Authority (EDA) as the administrator of this Fund to support affordable housing initiatives within the
City; and

WHEREAS, the EDA has identified the need to preserve and improve NOAH properties through the
creation of a dedicated Naturally Occurring Affordable Housing (NOAH) Loan Program (the “Program”)
that provides financial assistance to multifamily property owners for necessary repairs and
improvements, while ensuring continued affordability of units; and

WHEREAS, due to limited staff capacity, the EDA seeks to partner with the Minnesota Center for
Energy and Environment (CEE), a qualified program administrator, to support the successful
implementation of the NOAH Loan Program, with CEE aiding in program design, underwriting,
compliance, and ongoing administration.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that, after appropriate examination and due consideration, the
Authority hereby:
1. Approves the creation and implementation of the EDA’s Naturally Occurring Affordable Housing
(NOAH) Loan Program; and
2. Approves the form and substance of the Columbia Heights Naturally Occurring Affordable
Housing (NOAH) Loan Program Origination Agreement (the “Agreement”), the Program
guidelines (Exhibit A), and the Program budget (Exhibit B); and
3. Authorizes the officers, employees, and other agents of the Authority to take all actions
necessary to perform the Authority’s obligations under the Program Origination Agreement and
Exhibits A and B as a whole, including, without limitation, all acts and things required of them
by or in connection with this resolution, for the full, punctual, and complete performance of all
the terms, covenants, and agreements contained herein.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES October 06, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 10

ORDER OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Passed this 6! of October 2025

Offered by: Amada Marquez-Simula
Seconded by:  Justice Spriggs

Roll Call: All ayes of present. MOTION PASSED.
President

Attest:

Secretary

5. Executive Session: Develop or Consider Counteroffers for the Purchase of Real Property at 4024-

4026 Central Ave NE. Closed per Minn. Stat. 13D.05, Subdivision 3(c).

Motion by Buesgens, seconded by Dibba, to recess to an executive session to discuss Agenda Item 5
pursuant to Minnesota Statute 13D.05, Subdivision 3(c). All ayes. MOTION PASSED.

F

orney noted that the discussion is being recorded and will be added to the minutes, but the minutes

will not be released until a later date.

The EDA discussed the potential purchase of real property at 4024-4026 Central Ave NE.

Motion by Deneen, seconded by Buesgens, to reconvene the open session. All ayes. MOTION PASSED.

BUSINESS UPDATES

a.

SPAAR Key Communities Grant Homeownership Resource Night Recap

Voight stated that the SPAAR event occurred on September 16%". The English and Spanish sessions
were both recorded and are available on YouTube. She added that she would be following up with
the attendees and everyone who signed up for the event but did not attend. SPAAR is excited to
continue to partner with the City.

b. Minnesota Housing Finance Agency 2025 Local Housing Trust Fund Grants Program Award

Voight stated the City has been awarded $75,000, which will be matched with City funding and will
be used for affordable housing.

Community Entrepreneurship Program Update and Invitation

Voight noted that the Community Entrepreneurship Program launched on September 20" and the
cohort is 32 people. The EDA and Council are invited to attend the graduation on November 1°t at
12:00 pm at Murzyn Hall.

ADJOURNMENT




City of Columbia Heights MINUTES October 06, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 11

Motion by Mdrquez-Simula, seconded by Spriggs, to adjourn the meeting at 5:57 pm. All ayes.
MOTION PASSED.

Respectfully submitted,

o1e_

Sarah LaVoie, Recording Secretary



SPECIAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

AUTHORITY MEETING
City Hall—Shared Vision Room, 3989 Central Ave NE
Monday, November 10, 2025
5:00 PM

MINUTES

The meeting was called to order at 5:00 pm by President James.

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
Members present: Connie Buesgens; Laurel Deneen; Lamin Dibba; Rachel James; Amada Marquez-
Simula; Marlaine Szurek

Members absent: Justice Spriggs

Staff present: Mitchell Forney, Community Development Director; Aaron Chirpich, City Manager; Emilie
Voight, Community Development Coordinator

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
BUSINESS ITEMS

1. 4300 Central Avenue — TIF Pledge for General Obligation TIF Revenue Bonds Amended.
Forney reported that during the summer of 2021, the City received word that Hy-Vee was
interested in selling the property located at 4300 Central Avenue NE. The City moved to gain
control over the site by working with Alatus, who agreed to purchase the property. In order to
support the developer, the City provided funding in the form of a loan for the purchase and
predevelopment costs related to the project. Alatus requested a total loan of $6,000,000, which
covered the following items:

e Land Acquisition — $4,500,000

e Closing Costs — $105,200

e City Fees — $50,000

e Demolition —$671,686

e Environmental Testing and Reports — $42,156
e Geotechnical Testing and Reports — $35,000

Forney noted that rather than providing a direct loan, the City funded the project using borrowed
funds from general obligation tax increment financing (TIF) bonds. Under this structure, the City
issued the debt necessary for Alatus to purchase the property directly from Hy-Vee, with the City
acting as the interim lender. Alatus is expected to repay the City’s loan when the project closes
with permanent financing.

Forney stated that in 2023, as the original bonds approached maturity, the City reissued a new set
of temporary general obligation TIF bonds to pay off the original bond series and extend the loan
timeline. This reissuance provided additional time for Alatus to complete predevelopment activities



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES November 10, 2025
Special EDA Meeting Page 2

and pursue permanent financing for the project. The current bond cycle, issued in 2023, is now set
to mature in February 2026.

Forney explained that as the City approaches this upcoming maturity date, Alatus has not yet
secured permanent financing and continues to work with the City on project planning. The overall
scope of the project remains under discussion and is anticipated to be reviewed by the City Council
at its December work session. Given the continued predevelopment status, staff are bringing
forward the issuance of a new set of permanent general obligation TIF bonds to pay off the 2023
bonds and again extend the loan term to allow additional time for project development and
financing.

Forney noted that the new bonds will remain temporary, similar to the previous issuances, and all
bond funds from each series will be repaid at the time of closing on the project’s first phase.
Because the general obligation bonds are tax increment bonds, the City will again pledge tax
increment to pay the debt service. The EDA administers the City’s TIF districts and receives the
increment from the County. Therefore, the City is requesting that the EDA pledge an increment
from the Alatus TIF district to the City for debt service payments on the new bonds. The formal
mechanism for this arrangement is an amended TIF Pledge Agreement. The EDA’s counsel has
prepared the attached amendment and resolution for the EDA’s review and approval.

Forney stated that looking ahead, the City Council will consider the amended and restated loan
documents at one of its meetings in November. Following that, the Council is expected to set the
bond sale at its December meeting, with final bond approval anticipated at the first Council
meeting in January 2026.

Questions/Comments from Members:

Marquez-Simula asked the Alatus representative if there were any updates. She added that MnDOT
is doing construction and wondered if they had discussed with MnDOT about development
opportunities. Barrett Corwin, Director of Development, replied that the financing environment
since 2023 has been much better. He added that due to financing getting better, they have some
“stokes in the fire” on what could happen on the site. He explained that Trader Joe's had been an
option for the site, but they walked away from 13 total sites in the state. He explained that Alatus
has a new site plan and is excited to show it to the City Council. The site plan would maintain the
urban edge on Central Avenue and would provide more pedestrian experiences going down into
the site.

Mr. Corwin stated the first phase of the project would be somewhere between 260-300 housing
units. Parking would not be exposed. He explained that they would build active uses so that it is an
appealing building on every side. Many large grocery stores were not excited about the site,
because they would like to see large, exposed parking areas. Bob Lux, Founder and Principal of
Alatus, added that Mr. Corwin has already started a stormwater study and assessment. He noted
that the cost to build structured parking for commercial spaces can get expensive, so they are
looking at options within the site plan. He explained that they are in contact with MnDOT about the
transit route and have received an acceptance letter for a right-in and right-out access onto the site



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES November 10, 2025
Special EDA Meeting Page 3

from Central Avenue. The credit market is starting to unfreeze a little bit.

Mr. Lux added that Mr. Corwin is working with a strategic partner that has a lower cost per capita
that they can access, and would be another financing platform that can be utilized to get the
project started. Chirpich added that it is advantageous at this juncture, where the City could have a
more deeply engaged watershed district and have to integrate MnDOT’s concerns. Mr. Corwin
explained that they did not fully appreciate the stormwater needs for the site and how it would
benefit the City and neighboring cities. They expect to find some soft funds in order to construct
the stormwater improvements on the site. He explained that they will get the stormwater data in
30-45 days and will be able to have options from an engineering standpoint.

Szurek asked if they are looking for a different anchor tenant. Mr. Lux replied that they are looking
for commercial tenants who they think can work on the site. Szurek asked if they were looking to
do more rental residential housing rather than commercial businesses. Mr. Lux replied that they
are still looking at options.

Szurek mentioned that the project continues to get delayed, and the City is providing Alatus with
the bonds to keep them going financially. She explained that they are not seeing the project
moving forward. Mr. Lux expressed his understanding of the frustration and explained that he does
not have a timeline until they can get a commercial tenant in the space or the City decides to just
have residential spaces.

Dibba asked Mr. Lux if any entities have been interested in the commercial space. Mr. Lux replied
that they have identified that the City does not have a national daycare in the area of the site. He
explained that he is speaking with daycare providers and medical office entities. Chirpich added
that lending is starting to percolate. Mr. Lux explained that it is still tough to get ahold of funding
and interest rates are still 2% higher than they should be. In the meantime, they are looking into
other financing platforms.

Deneen mentioned on the previous plan, there was a gym that had been identified. She asked if it
was still a part of the current plan. Mr. Lux replied that it was not a part of the new plan.

Deneen asked how the project's timeline would be impacted since Alatus has one project ahead of
the City’s project. Mr. Lux replied that their financial partner decides which project goes next.
Chirpich added that the City may need some more time if they are going to pivot significantly from
commercial and prepare a Comprehensive Plan amendment.

James asked when the item would come before the EDA again. Forney replied that the site plan
would be presented to the EDA in December. James suggested that the EDA discuss the bonds
during this meeting, before getting into the details of the site plan.

Buesgens expressed her appreciation for the comments and explained that patience is part of the
process. She added that she looks forward to seeing the revised plan. Mr. Corwin explained that
since they are able to pivot and use phasing, it allows more options on how to move forward. It is
possible to start building residential space and wait until a commercial tenant expresses interest in



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES November 10, 2025
Special EDA Meeting Page 4

the site.

James mentioned that she went to the Housing Forum at Metro Cities, and they had speakers from
all of the community developments in the metro area. Nothing is getting built because of the
climate. She agreed that the phasing delay could be helpful with the City.

Motion by Mdrquez-Simula, seconded by Buesgens, to waive the reading of Resolution No. 2025-28,
there being ample copies available to the public. All ayes of present. MOTION PASSED.

Motion by Mdrquez-Simula, seconded by Buesgens, to approve Resolution No. 2025-28, a Resolution of
the Columbia Heights Economic Development Authority, authorizing execution of a second amended
and restated tax increment pledge agreement with the City of Columbia Heights relating to taxable
general obligation tax increment refunding bonds, series 2026a. All ayes of present. MOTION PASSED.

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-28

A RESOLUTION OF THE COLUMBIA HEIGHTS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, AUTHORIZING
EXECUTION OF A SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED TAX INCREMENT PLEDGE AGREEMENT WITH
THE CITY OF COLUMBIA HEIGHTS RELATING TO TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION TAX INCREMENT
REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2026A

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) of the Columbia Heights Economic
Development Authority (the “Authority”) as follows:

Section 1. Recitals.

1.01. The City of Columbia Heights, Minnesota (the “City”) has established, and the Authority
administers, the Alatus TIF District (the “TIF District”), a redevelopment district within the Downtown
Central Business Redevelopment Project (the “Redevelopment Project”) within the City, pursuant to
Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.174 through 469.1794, as amended (the “TIF Act”), and adopted a
tax increment financing plan for the TIF District (the “TIF Plan”).

1.02. Pursuant to the authority conferred by Section 469.178, subdivision 5 of the TIF Act and
Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475, as amended (the “Municipal Debt Act”), including Section 475.61,
subdivision 6, the City issued its Taxable General Obligation Temporary Tax Increment Bonds, Series
2021A (the “Series 2021A Bond”), dated July 29, 2021, in the original aggregate principal amount of
$5,935,000, to pay all or a portion of the public redevelopment costs incurred or to be incurred within
the Redevelopment Project as identified in the TIF Plan, including but not limited to a bridge loan
provided to Alatus Columbia Heights Il LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Developer”), for
land acquisition, demolition, and related costs (the “Project Costs”), and the Developer agreed to pay
the City’s financing and other related costs related to issuing the Series 2021A Bond.

1.03. The City and the Authority entered into a Tax Increment Pledge Agreement, dated July 29,
2021 (the “Original Pledge Agreement”), relating to the payment of principal of and interest on the
Series 2021A Bond and providing for the pledge of tax increment revenues generated from the TIF



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES November 10, 2025
Special EDA Meeting Page 5

District to secure the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2021A Bond.

1.04. Prior to the maturity of the Series 2021A Bond, the City determined it to be necessary to
provide additional temporary financing for the Project Costs and to issue an additional series of
temporary bonds for such purpose.

1.05. Pursuant to the authority conferred by the TIF Act, including Section 469.178, subdivision
5, and the Municipal Debt Act, including Sections 475.61, subdivision 6, and 475.67, subdivision 3, and
a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City on November 27, 2023, the City issued its Taxable
General Obligation Temporary Tax Increment Refunding Bonds, Series 2023A (the “Series 2023A
Bond”), in the original aggregate principal amount of $6,615,000, to refund the Series 2021A Bond
prior to maturity and provide additional temporary financing for the Project Costs.

1.06. In connection with the issuance of the Series 2023A Bond, the City and the Authority
entered into the Amended and Restated Tax Increment Pledge Agreement, dated December 14, 2023
(the “First Amended Agreement”), which amended and restated the Original Agreement, providing for
the pledge of tax increment revenues generated from the TIF District to secure the payment of
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2023A Bond.

1.07. The Series 2023A Bond matures on February 1, 2026, and is payable on such date from tax
increments resulting in increases in the taxable value of real property in the TIF District and/or from
proceeds of permanent bonds to be issued by the City prior to such maturity.

1.08. The City has determined the need to issue permanent bonds to refinance the Series
2023A Bond, thereby providing permanent financing for the Project Costs. To that end, at an upcoming
meeting of the City Council of the City, but in no event later than February 1, 2026, the City Council will
consider a resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of the City’s Taxable General Obligation Tax
Increment Refunding Bonds, Series 2026A (the “Bonds”), in the maximum aggregate principal amount
sufficient to pay: (i) the principal of, interest on, and premium, if any, on the Series 2023A Bond on the
redemption date thereof, (ii) interest on the Bonds for a period not exceeding three years from their
date of issue or such other maximum period under the Municipal Debt Act, and (iii) costs of issuance,
pursuant to the TIF Act, including Section 469.178, subdivision 5, and the Municipal Debt Act, including
Section 475.67, subdivision 3. The proceeds of the Bonds will be used to refund the Series 2023A Bond
prior to maturity and provide permanent financing for the Project Costs.

1.09. There has been presented to the Board a Second Amended and Restated Tax Increment
Pledge Agreement (the “Pledge Agreement”) between the Authority and the City, which amends and
restates the Original Pledge Agreement, as amended and restated by the First Amended Pledge
Agreement, relating to the payment of principal and interest on the Bonds and providing for the pledge
of tax increment revenues generated from the TIF District to secure the payment of principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds.

Section 2. Approval.

2.01. The Board hereby approves the pledge to the City of tax increment revenues attributable



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES November 10, 2025
Special EDA Meeting Page 6

to the TIF District for the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds.

2.02. The President and Executive Director of the Authority are hereby authorized to execute
and deliver the Pledge Agreement substantially in the form on file with the Board, providing for the
pledge of tax increment derived from property in the TIF District for the payment of the principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on the Bond.

2.03. This resolution shall be effective as of the date hereof.

Approved this 10th day of November, 2025, by the Board of Commissioners of the Columbia Heights
Economic Development Authority.

ORDER OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Passed this 10t of November 2025

Offered by: Amada Marquez-Simula
Seconded by:  Connie Buesgens
Roll Call: All ayes of present. MOTION PASSED.

President
Attest:

Acting Secretary

Szurek mentioned that the City needs to do something about people who dump furniture in their front
yards. Forney replied that he would reach out to the code enforcement officer to address the issue.

ADJOURNMENT

Motion by Deneen, seconded by Mdrquez-Simula, to adjourn the meeting at 5:32 pm. All ayes.
MOTION PASSED.

Respectfully submitted,

Emilie Voight, Acting Secretary



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
City Hall—Shared Vision Room, 3989 Central Ave NE
Monday, December 01, 2025
5:00 PM

MINUTES

The meeting was called to order at 5:00 pm by President James

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
Members present: Connie Buesgens; Laurel Deneen; Rachel James; Amdada Marquez-Simula; Justice
Spriggs; Marlaine Szurek

Members absent: Lamin Dibba

Staff present: Mitchell Forney, Community Development Director; Aaron Chirpich, City Manager; Sarah
LaVoie, Administrative Assistant; Emilie Voight, Community Development Coordinator; Ursula Brandt,
City Planner

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

CONSENT AGENDA
1. Approve the minutes of the Regular EDA Meeting of October 06, 2025.

2. Approve the minutes of the Special EDA Meeting of November 10, 2025.
3. Approve financial reports and payment of bills for September 2025 — Resolution No. 2025-29.
4. Approve financial reports and payment of bills for October 2025 — Resolution No. 2025-30.
Motion by Szurek, seconded by Deneen, to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. All ayes of
present. MOTION PASSED.

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-29
A RESOLUTION OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF COLUMBIA HEIGHTS, MINNESOTA,
APPROVING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2025 AND THE PAYMENT
OF THE BILLS FOR THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2025.
WHEREAS, the Columbia Heights Economic Development Authority (the “EDA”) is required by
Minnesota Statutes Section 469.096, Subd. 9, to prepare a detailed financial statement which shows all
receipts and disbursements, their nature, the money on hand, the purposes to which the money on

hand is to be applied, the EDA's credits and assets and its outstanding liabilities; and

WHEREAS, said Statute also requires the EDA to examine the statement and treasurer's vouchers or
bills and if correct, to approve them by resolution and enter the resolution in its records; and

WHEREAS, the financial statements for the month of September 2025 have been reviewed by the EDA



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 01, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 2

Commission; and

WHEREAS, the EDA has examined the financial statements and finds them to be acceptable as to both
form and accuracy; and

WHEREAS, the EDA Commission has other means to verify the intent of Section 469.096, Subd. 9,
including but not limited to Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, Annual City approved Budgets,
Audits and similar documentation; and

WHEREAS, financial statements are held by the City’s Finance Department in a method outlined by the
State of Minnesota’s Records Retention Schedule,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Columbia Heights Economic
Development Authority that it has examined the referenced financial statements including the check
history, and they are found to be correct, as to form and content; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the financial statements are acknowledged and received and the check
history as presented in writing is approved for payment out of proper funds; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED this resolution is made as part of the permanent records of the Columbia
Heights Economic Development Authority.

ORDER OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Passed this 1%t of December 2025

Offered by: Marlaine Szurek
Seconded by:  Laurel Deneen

Roll Call: All ayes of present. MOTION PASSED.
President

Attest:

Secretary

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-30
A RESOLUTION OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF COLUMBIA HEIGHTS, MINNESOTA,
APPROVING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2025 AND THE PAYMENT
OF THE BILLS FOR THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2025.

WHEREAS, the Columbia Heights Economic Development Authority (the “EDA”) is required by



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 01, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 3

Minnesota Statutes Section 469.096, Subd. 9, to prepare a detailed financial statement which shows all
receipts and disbursements, their nature, the money on hand, the purposes to which the money on
hand is to be applied, the EDA's credits and assets and its outstanding liabilities; and

WHEREAS, said Statute also requires the EDA to examine the statement and treasurer's vouchers or
bills and if correct, to approve them by resolution and enter the resolution in its records; and

WHEREAS, the financial statements for the month of October 2025 have been reviewed by the EDA
Commission; and

WHEREAS, the EDA has examined the financial statements and finds them to be acceptable as to both
form and accuracy; and

WHEREAS, the EDA Commission has other means to verify the intent of Section 469.096, Subd. 9,
including but not limited to Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, Annual City approved Budgets,
Audits and similar documentation; and

WHEREAS, financial statements are held by the City’s Finance Department in a method outlined by the
State of Minnesota’s Records Retention Schedule,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Columbia Heights Economic
Development Authority that it has examined the referenced financial statements including the check
history, and they are found to be correct, as to form and content; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the financial statements are acknowledged and received and the check
history as presented in writing is approved for payment out of proper funds; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED this resolution is made as part of the permanent records of the Columbia
Heights Economic Development Authority.

ORDER OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Passed this 1%t of December 2025

Offered by: Marlaine Szurek
Seconded by: Laurel Deneen
Roll Call: All ayes of present. MOTION PASSED.

President
Attest:

Secretary




City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 01, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 4

BUSINESS ITEMS

5. EDA 2025 End of Year Review
Voight reported that staff have prepared 2025 year-in-review summaries of EDA programs and
activities, as well as a recap of the focus areas identified in the EDA’s February discussion of
priorities and goals.

Facade Improvement Grant Program:

- Applications: 5 applications were received in 2025, and 4 were approved, for a total of $14,672
approved out of a total program budget of $80,000.

- Disbursements: 2 grants were disbursed, for a total of $7,524.

- Pending: 1 grantee has completed project improvements and is preparing financial documents
for disbursement.

- In addition, 4 grantees from program year 2024 finished their project improvements and
received their approved disbursements, totaling $17,036.

Fire Suppression Grant Program:

- Applications: 2 applications were received in 2025, and 2 were approved, for a total of $80,000
approved out of a total program budget of $100,000.

- Disbursements: 1 grant was disbursed, for a total of $30,000.

Home Energy Squad (in partnership with ICF and Xcel Energy): In 2025, through mid-November, the
Home Energy Squad conducted 24 energy audits with an additional 7 audits scheduled through the
end of December. This makes for a total of 31 visits in 2025. This year, Excel and ICF authorized
50%-off reduced price rates for all Columbia Heights audits without the need for a City rate buy-
down. Since the EDA no longer needed to buy down the HES visits to achieve the reduced price, no
City funds were expended toward the program in 2025.

Property Transactions:

- Transfer: 960 40th Ave NE transferred from the EDA to the City

- Loan: the EDA provided a $35,000 loan to cover the Twin Cities Habitat for Humanity
construction financing gap for the new home at 4243 5th St NE

- Purchase: 4510 Taylor St NE (through Commercial Revitalization program)

Miscellaneous:

- Applied for and received $75,000 in grant funds for affordable housing from the Minnesota
Housing (MHFA) Local Housing Trust Fund Grants Program.

- Approved Alatus’ refinancing of the Ratio apartment project.

- Awarded local salon Hairatage the 2025 Outstanding Business of the Year Award, after 15 years
—and counting — of business in Columbia Heights.

- Established ongoing funding for increased EDA and HRA levy funds.

- Created the Columbia Heights Naturally Occurring Affordable Housing (NOAH) Loan Program,
scheduled to launch in January 2026.

- EDA Commissioners and City staff volunteered at a Habitat for Humanity work day at 4243 5th
St NE.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 01, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 5

- Applied for and received a St Paul Area Association of REALTORS (SPAAR) grant for $5,500, and
used a portion of these funds to host an English-Spanish local homeownership resource night.

- Conducted 10 English-Spanish business outreach visits.

- Planted bee lawns on four EDA-owned parcels and installed signage explaining the bee lawn
initiative.

Forney gave a recap from the 2025 EDA Goal Setting, with achievement updates:
1. Central Ave

a. Inalignment with City Council citywide goals for public art, develop and launch a
Central Business District public art program.

b. Facilitate placemaking along and near Central Avenue, taking into consideration
existing program-based opportunities and upcoming MnDOT-led street
redevelopment.

i. In 2025, the EDA amended the Facade Improvement Grant Program to allow
businesses in the Central Business District to access up to $10,000 in fagade
grants, including for public alley-facing improvements.

ii. In 2025, the City audited and replaced signage at the City’s surface parking
lot.

iii. In 2025, the EDA planted bee lawns on three EDA-owned sites on Central
Avenue.
2. Business

a. Create initiatives to increase the City’s interactions with and promotion of the local
business community.

i. In 2025, Community Development staff collaborated with the City’s
Multicultural Liaison to conduct 10 business outreach visits to local Spanish-
speaking businesses.

b. Update City grant programs to ensure they provide beneficial and valuable support
to businesses.

i. In 2025, the EDA amended its existing grant programs to increase the
amounts available for businesses and to relax restrictions, thereby promoting
more usage of the programs.

2. Neighborhood/Housing

a. Review, revise, and continue to administer the EDA’s Commercial Revitalization
Program to address substandard and non-conforming housing stock.

i. In 2025, the EDA revised the Commercial Revitalization Program to enable
the Commission to target blighted and substandard single-family homes in
residential districts as well as in commercial districts. Subsequently, the EDA
purchased the blighted home at 4510 Taylor St and is preparing the site for
residential redevelopment.

b. Establish and implement an allocation plan for the City’s Affordable Housing Trust
Fund.

i. In 2025, the EDA established a Naturally Occurring Affordable Housing Loan
Program and allocated Local Housing Trust Fund resources to these loans,
while also setting aside funds for larger-scale affordable housing
redevelopment programs.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 01, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 6

ii. In 2025, the City was awarded a 575,000 grant from Minnesota Housing for
local affordable housing initiatives, to be administered through the Trust
Fund.
4. “Big Sites”
a. Advance redevelopment of EDA-owned properties.
b. Promote and champion opportunities for major local redevelopment sites.
i. Marketing
ii. Outreach to developers
iii. Track progressin 2025
1. In 2025, the Medtronic / Lincoln Avenue Communities / 800 53rd Ave
NE redevelopment project completed its comprehensive plan
amendment and received base approval for its preliminary
entitlements.
2. In 2025, the City and the EDA conducted two loan modifications and
pledged for the reissuance of bonds for the Rainbow / Alatus / 4300
Central Ave NE site.
3. In 2025, the City provided a letter of support to Minnesota Housing for
one of the developers pre-selected by Anoka County for
redevelopment of the Royce Place / 1515 44th Ave NE site.

Forney asked the Commission for input on how they would like to do the 2026 goal setting
meeting.

Questions/Comments from Members:

James stated she sees progress on the four goals, but there is still work to be done on them. She
added that she would like to focus on the four goals and refine the subpoints.

Buesgens suggested tweaking the facade program. She mentioned that she is reading the City’s
Downtown Master Plan from 25 years ago, and many of the dreams in it did not come to be. She
wondered how the City could incentivize businesses to make their places look pretty. She explained
that the City could do a competition for businesses to update their storefronts and offer cash
prizes.

Marquez-Simula agreed with James’s comments about keeping the four goals and refining them.

Buesgens wondered if the goals could be displayed as a list and checked off as the EDA
accomplishes goals.

6. 4300 Central Site Plan Discussion
Forney reported that as the City continues to partner with the residential developer Alatus on the
redevelopment of the 4300 Central site, staff and the developer are preparing for the next phase of
the project heading into 2026. With the grocery store no longer being pursued, Alatus is meeting
with the EDA to review revised site plan concepts and discuss potential future uses and design
options for the property.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 01, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 7

Forney stated Alatus is presenting the updated site plan concepts to the Economic Development
Authority (EDA) at its December 1st meeting. The intent of this presentation is to gather feedback
from the EDA on the proposed layout and development direction as the project continues to
evolve.

Forney noted that as part of the development process, the City will need to amend its 2040
Comprehensive Plan to update the vision for the 4300 Central Ave lot. The Comprehensive Plan
currently designates the land use for this lot as Commercial, with Parks/Open Space use assigned to
the portion with stormwater retention. The commercial designation does not allow for any
residential use and limits the floor area ratio (FAR) to 2.0. The final concept plan will determine the
new land use designation, as well as whether a text amendment will also be needed. A
Comprehensive Plan amendment will take 6 to 8 months to complete. Before submitting the
amendment for approval by the Met Council, the amendment must be made available to the
adjacent and affected community for review for 60 days, the mandatory environmental review
must be complete, and the City Council must approve the amendment. Once the amendment is
submitted, the Met Council will have 60 days to review and ask for changes. The amendment must
be approved before any plans can be approved for the development of the site.

Tony Kuechle, President of Alatus LLC, explained that they are revisiting the site plan for 4300
Central Avenue due to circumstances like the Central Avenue update. He explained that they did a
traffic study for the site and discovered that they would need to incorporate a traffic light. He
added that MnDOT has granted them a right-in and right-out entry into the site and is starting to
plan with it. He noted that there is an opportunity to build the foundation further back and move
the wall. Alatus is exploring with City staff the opportunity to enhance the streetscape or the
development itself.

Mr. Kuechle noted that they have broken the site into a super block, a half block, and a quarter
block. That way, they can move elements of the site around to adequately develop the site density,
and the site uses can be shifted to make sense. Alatus is working with the watershed to find a
creative way to handle the pond. MnDOT is stepping in to help find a solution and contribute
money to help with that solution.

Mr. Kuechle mentioned that the traffic study revealed that there is greater traffic along 44t
Avenue than along 43" Avenue. They decided to move commercial businesses up to 44 Avenue to

help with the commercial development.

Questions/Comments from Members:

Buesgens asked if Ace Hardware pulled out of the plan. Mr. Kuechle replied that they did and
added that the fitness center also pulled out. He explained that City staff are emphasizing having
more destination-oriented retail that could be put into the site.

James asked how the grading would work on the site and where the front door access would be in
relation to Central Avenue. Mr. Kuechle replied that they have not set the final grades yet. There



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 01, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 8

may be a couple of steps up or down, but it would allow two levels of parking beneath the building.
James emphasized the importance of there being a lot of front door access on Central Avenue.

Buesgens mentioned that a senior co-op would be an interesting concept.

Szurek asked how the development would have a drop in depth and also have an on-grade street
that turns onto Central. Buesgens mentioned that they would fill it in eventually. Mr. Kuechle
explained the process of how they would fill the area with soil, which could create an opportunity
for full-size trees, a plaza, and fountains.

Szurek asked if the parking would be below the building. Mr. Kuechle replied that it would be.
Chirpich added that the right-in and right-out access is a ramp.

James asked what Alatus’ timeline is for funding and building. Mr. Kuechle replied that they would
not be able to secure funding until they had entitlements for a project. They would get going on the
Comprehensive Plan, PUD approvals, and an EAW. It will be eight to nine months of real estate
work to get the project financed and ready for construction.

Deneen asked if there was interest in the future development of the townhomes or daycares. She
asked what the timelines for them would be. Mr. Kuechle replied that the next timeline they would
focus on is what would happen with the pond and watershed. He added that they set the future
development up to be rental townhomes, for-sale townhomes, or single-family homes. It will be
low to medium density.

Szurek pointed out that there is not a lot of retail proposed in the development. She noted that the
Met Council would be asking the City how it would distribute retail in the City. Mr. Kuechle replied
that he has not seen the Met Council give an allocation for retention of retail, as they have with
housing.

James asked if the commercial space for the development would be the daycare. Mr. Kuechle
replied that he did not know, but it was a proposed idea. He added that a medical office could go
into the development. The main commercial that is going into developments right now is car
washes, fast food, and mini storage.

Spriggs asked if there was potential for businesses in the future to come in. Mr. Kuechle replied
that potentially there would be room for future businesses. The biggest challenge would be the
grading since retail stores want to have a storefront with easy-to-access parking. He mentioned
that they could assess if there is interest in retail stores after developing a portion of the site.

Marquez-Simula asked if residents would be charged for parking. Mr. Kuechle replied that they
usually charge for parking or include it in the rent. Marquez-Simula asked that the parking be
included in the rent.

Deneen mentioned that the density was lower than the original proposal and asked staff how they
felt about the numbers for the tax base. Chirpich replied that the biggest frustration is the



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 01, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 9

difficulties in developing commercial sites. The City is a financial partner to the project. He
explained that staff are most stressed about the loss of the commercial tax base for the site. They
are currently at a density that the community is more comfortable with. They are trying to solve for
having the residential tax base make up for what the commercial tax base would have been. He
explained that the City has to go through the amendment process with the Met Council because
the City was anticipating that the site would be much more commercial instead of residential.

Mr. Kuechle explained that after the first building is built, they may see more commercial activity
since there will be more units in the area. Forney mentioned that the City retains more taxes from
the projects than if they had 4d tax classification. He added that since the project will start with
building one section, it provides flexibility for the opportunity for a commercial building to come in
later. It also provides flexibility to move the parcels around.

Buesgens mentioned that it would be a nice feature to have a dry, green turf area for people to
enjoy. She asked if Alatus was planning on reusing some of the water on the site with a fountain.
Mr. Kuechle replied that he is not that far in the planning with the watershed district, but he has
done that on previous sites.

Buesgens asked Mr. Kuechle if he would consider doing a survey for Ratio residents on where they
shop and eat to determine what amenities they are using in the City.

Marquez-Simula asked if there could be a discussion about having a municipal grocery store on the
site. She added that the super block on the site could be more rectangular, going towards the back.

James asked if Mr. Kuechle needed anything else from the EDA. Mr. Kuechle replied that he got the
input he needed and summarized that they would move forward with the modular approach. He
added that they would develop the plan further and come back to the EDA and have a work
session. James asked the EDA if they agreed with the modular approach. The EDA agreed.

Spriggs asked if the daycare was a proposal or if it was definitely going to happen. Mr. Kuechle
explained that City staff came up with the idea, and he brought the idea to his brokers and
discovered that there is a hole in the market for a nationally branded daycare.

BUSINESS ITEMS
a. Heights Rental Sale

Forney explained that Heights Rental approached the City and acknowledged the first right of
first refusal to their upcoming sale, and wondered if the EDA was interested. They have
identified some partners that might want to purchase the property. He asked the EDA if they
wanted to execute on their right of first refusal, or if they wanted to consider not
acknowledging and letting Heights Rental move forward with the sale without interfering. He
wondered if the EDA would want to lock down the right of first refusal in the future. Staff do
not identify a huge use for the Heights Rental location other than being a rental service
business at this time. He asked the EDA if they wanted the parcel.

Spriggs asked if the use would be the same after the sale. Forney confirmed that it would be a



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES December 01, 2025
EDA Meeting Page 10

rental service business.

James asked if there was a cost to the City to retain the right of first refusal. Forney replied that
it is just attorney costs. Staff would recommend retaining the right of first refusal so the City
would have the ability to purchase the parcel in the future. James stated she would not want to
purchase the parcel right now. Mdarquez-Simula added that it would be interesting to keep it for
the future. James stated that if it is not ridiculously expensive to retain the right of first refusal
for future purchase, it would be interesting to look into it.

b. Columbia Heights — Fridley Business Council Meeting
Voight stated that the Twin Cities North Chamber of Commerce is having their quarterly
Business Council meeting this Friday from 8:00 am to 9:00 am at City Hall. She asked what EDA
members were going to attend and added that she would post a quorum notice.

Madrquez-Simula mentioned that businesses are not shoveling the sidewalks and wondered if
there could be communication to businesses to remind them of business district guidelines.
Forney replied that he drove around the City, and the City will be sending out letters to
businesses that are not in compliance. He added that the City has an abatement contractor.

Buesgens asked if there was an update on the Fairview auction. Forney explained that since the
last EDA meeting, the Fairview building had gone up for auction. Staff kept a close eye on it and
received a number of calls. There are no updates on how much the building sold for. There
were some home healthcare businesses that would not be able to go in, but expressed interest
in the site. An antique mall was interested. He noted that they will have to wait and see.

Spriggs asked if Rapid Graphics was for sale. Forney replied that it is not for sale, and the City
has had difficulty in getting in touch with the owners.

Buesgens asked if there had been a discussion about finding owners of vacant properties that
are letting vacant buildings sit. James replied that they had discussed that, and many
commissioners were interested in doing that since there are owners leaving properties vacant.
She added that it would be a good thing for the EDA to look at. Voight mentioned that all of
these could be good topics for goal setting.

ADJOURNMENT

Motion by Deneen, seconded by Spriggs, to adjourn the meeting at 5:59 pm. All ayes. MOTION
PASSED.

Respectfully submitted,



City of Columbia Heights
EDA Meeting

MINUTES

December 01, 2025
Page 11

/

| oe_

Sarah LaVoie, Recording Secretary



THE

CITY OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING
COLUMBIA AGENDA SECTION CONSENT AGENDA
HEIGHTS MEETING DATE JANUARY 12, 2025

ITEM: | Approval of Resolution 2025-01, Designating Official Depositories for the City of Columbia
Heights.

Presenting Item: Aaron Chirpich, City Manager

DEPARTMENT: Finance BY/DATE: Andrew Splinter / January 7,2026

CORE CITY STRATEGIES: (please indicate areas that apply by adding an “X” in front of the selected text below)

_Community that Grows with Purpose and Equity _Engaged, Effective and Forward-Thinking

_High Quality Public Spaces X Resilient and Prosperous Economy

_Safe, Accessible and Built for Everyone _Inclusive and Connected Community
BACKGROUND

Each year the council designates by resolution the depositories for city funds and investments. The attached
resolution follows the general format of the resolution passed in previous years.

SUMMARY OF CURRENT STATUS
The City’s general banking transactions are conducted through Northeast Bank.

Under this resolution, all investments must be of the type authorized by Minnesota Statute 118A.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

It is staff’'s recommendation that we maintain existing banking relationships as they meet the City’s current
needs and, in combination, they provide capacity for addressing the City’s evolving needs for electronic
banking services.

RECOMMENDED MOTION(S):

MOTION: Move to waive the reading of Resolution 2026-01, there being ample copies available to the
public.

MOTION: Motion to adopt Resolution 2026-01, designating the official depositories for the City of Columbia
Heights.

ATTACHMENT(S)
Resolution 2026-01



RESOLUTION NO. 2026-001

A resolution of the City Council for the City of Columbia Heights, Minnesota, designating official depositories
for the City of Columbia Heights.

Now, therefore, in accordance with all ordinances and regulations of the City of Columbia Heights, the City
Council of the City of Columbia Heights makes the following:

ORDER OF COUNCIL

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, tha